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COUNCIL MINUTES

The City Council of the City of Raleigh met in regular session on Tuesday, January 4, 2005, at 1:00 p.m. in the City Council Chamber, Raleigh Municipal Building, Avery C. Upchurch Government Complex, 222 W. Hargett Street, Raleigh, North Carolina, with the following present.




Mayor Meeker




Mr. West




Ms. Cowell




Mr. Crowder




Mr. Hunt




Mr. Isley




Mr. Regan




Ms. Taliaferro

The Mayor called the meeting to order and invocation was rendered by Ralph Puccini of the City Clerk’s Office.  The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Council Member Cowell.  The following items were discussed with action taken as shown.

MAYOR’S COMMENTS – VARIOUS – RECEIVED

Mayor Meeker pointed out the City is enjoying very good weather and as was mentioned in Mr. Puccini’s invocation, there are people half way around the globe who are suffering as a result of natural disasters.  He called all people to contribute to the appropriate charities to help those people restore their lives again, asking people to fully participate in contributing to the extent they can.

Mayor Meeker pointed out Senators Elect Hunt and Cowell will have to leave the meeting at 4:00 p.m. in order to attend a General Assembly orientation session.  They will not be at the night meeting, therefore would be excused from the meeting when they have to leave.  He stated there will be a formal reception on January 19th at 5:00 p.m. in the Municipal Building honoring Mr. Hunt and Ms. Cowell.  He stated Council members and staff members will have an opportunity to make comments at that time.

Mayor Meeker stated there would be a Special City Council meeting on Thursday, January 20 at 7:00 p.m. to start the process for replacement of Mr. Hunt and Ms. Cowell.  He encouraged Council members to begin thinking about their selections pointing out we would be meeting that night to make a decision on the replacements.

CONSENT AGENDA

CONSENT AGENDA – APPROVED AS AMENDED

Mayor Meeker presented the consent agenda indicating all items are considered to be routine and may be enacted by one motion. If a Councillor requests discussion on an item, the item will be removed from the consent agenda and considered separately. Mayor Meeker explained the vote on the consent agenda will be a roll call vote.  The Mayor stated he had received the following requests to withdraw items from the consent agenda:  Certificate of Consistency (Crowder); Sewer Capacity Sale – Town of Clayton (Meeker); E. M. Johnson Water Treatment Plant Security Improvements (Crowder); Evaluation of Remote Operational Facilities for Multiple City Departments (Crowder); No Parking Zone on Carroll Drive and Speed Limit Reduction at Various Locations (Taliaferro).  Without objections those items were withdrawn from the consent agenda.

Mayor Meeker pointed out there are some clarifications on a couple of the remaining items on the consent agenda.  The first relates to the temporary street closings for the Governor’s inauguration ceremonies and parade.  He stated the City Manager had provided Council members with the changes in the event route, etc., and stated the approval should include a statement that any unauthorized street vendors will be prohibited as it relates to the inauguration ceremonies and street closings.  The second item needing clarification relates to PU-2005-1 and 2 which indicates the location of the projects as being Skycrest/Dogwood Annexation area off Lead Mine Road.  It should read off “Trawick Road.”  The Mayor stated those two clarifications would be considered in approval of the consent agenda.  Ms. Taliaferro moved approval of the remaining items on the consent agenda with the clarifications as outlined.  Her motion was seconded by Ms. Cowell and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in the affirmative.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.  The items on the consent agenda were as follows.

ANNEXATION PETITIONS – VARIOUS LOCATIONS – VARIOUS ACTIONS TAKEN INCLUDING SETTING PUBLIC HEARINGS

The agenda presented the following petitions for annexation.

	Area Name Contiguous
	Petitioner
	Acres
	Proposed Use

	M&M Equity Investments
	Ira Gaines & Dawan Gunter
	3.41
	Commercial

	Carolina Biblical Gardens
	Woodlawn Holding Gray, President
	34.58
	Commercial

	2540 Lake Wheeler Road/ Coggins
	James C. & Tammy Coggins
	2.00
	Residential

	Satellite Petitions
	
	
	

	Wake County Elementary School Site/Forestville Road
	B. Clinton Jobe, Director of Real Estate Services
	25.68
	Institutional

	6204 Charles Street/Allen
	Vivian S. & Bernard Allen
	.45
	Residential

	2817 Sadie Hopkins Street/Cromwell
	Gertrude & Julius Cromwell
	.54
	Residential

	2729 Newsome Street/ Patrick
	Patrick Crawford, Patrick Real Estate, Inc. 
	.17
	Residential


Recommendation:

a. That these annexation petitions be acknowledged and that Council request the City Clerk to check their sufficiency pursuant to State statutes, and except as noted below, and if found sufficient advertise for public hearings on Tuesday, February 1, 2005.

b. That the Carolina Biblical Gardens property annexation petition be acknowledged and that the Council request the City Clerk to check its sufficiency pursuant to State statutes and if found sufficient advertise for public hearing on Tuesday, March 15, 2005.  Appropriate agencies should be notified of this request in accordance with our annexation agreement with Town of Garner.
c. That the Wake County elementary School Site annexation petition be acknowledged and that the Council request the City Clerk to check its sufficiency pursuant to State statutes and if found sufficient, advertise for public hearing on Tuesday, March 15, 2005.  Appropriate agencies should be notified of this request in accordance with our annexation agreement with the Town of Rolesville.

d. Because the existing residences at 6204 Charles Street, 2817 Sadie Hopkins Street and 2729 Newsome Street are connecting to City water only and sewer is not available at this time, it is recommended that the annexation of these properties be deferred.

Upheld on Consent Agenda Taliaferro/Cowell – 8 ayes.

PARADE – MARTIN LUTHER KING JR. CELEBRATION – VARIOUS STREET CLOSURES – APPROVED CONDITIONALLY

David Prince, representing the Martin Luther King Jr. Celebration Committee, would like to hold a parade on Monday, January 17, 2005 from 11:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m.

Recommendation:  Approve subject to conditions noted on the report in the agenda packet.  Upheld on Consent Agenda Taliaferro/Cowell – 8 ayes.

ROAD RACE – RUN FOR THE ROSES – VARIOUS STREET CLOSINGS – APPROVED CONDITIONALLY

Jim Young, representing the North Carolina Roadrunners Club, would like to hold the annual Run for the Roses road race on Sunday, February 13, 2005 from 2:00 p.m. to 3:00 p.m.

Recommendation:  Approve subject to conditions noted on the report in the agenda packet.  Upheld on Consent Agenda Taliaferro/Cowell – 8 ayes.

STREET CLOSING – GOVERNOR’S INAUGURATION CEREMONY AND BALL – VARIOUS ACTIONS TAKEN

The agenda presented the following temporary street closing requests.

Kathryn Hicks, representing the 2005 North Carolina Inaugural Committee, request street closures on Friday, January 14, 2005 from 6:00 p.m. until Saturday, January 15, 2005 at 6:00 p.m. for the Governor’s Inauguration Ceremonies and parade.
Recommendation:  Approved subject to conditions handed to Council members at the table and with the understanding any unauthorized street vendors would be prohibited.

Adriane Burton, representing the Raleigh Junior League, requests permission to encumber several parking spaces on Saturday, January 15, 2005 from 4:00 p.m. until Sunday, January 16, 2005 at 12:00 a.m. for the Governor’s Inauguration Ball.

Recommendation:  Approval subject to conditions given to Council members at the table.  Both items upheld on Consent Agenda Taliaferro/Cowell – 8 ayes.

REZONING SCHEDULE – JANUARY – APPROVED

The Planning Department has received 11 requests for rezoning to be held at the Tuesday, January 18, 2005 public hearing.  There may be several text changes and comprehensive plan amendments.

Recommendation: One hearing to be scheduled at 6:30 p.m., on the evening of Tuesday, January 18, 2005, and that the zoning tour be held on Friday, January 14, 2005 starting at 8:30 a.m.  Upheld on Consent Agenda Taliaferro/Cowell – 8 ayes.

PW-2004-12 – ROGERS LANE EXTENSION – RESOLUTION OF INTENT ADOPTED

A design public meeting was held on November 22, 2004 to present design information and preliminary right-of-way and easement needs for the Rogers Lane Extension project from the NCDOT bridge over US 64 Bypass to existing Rogers Lane south of Daleview Drive.  The project plans are approximately 75% complete.  It is now appropriate to schedule a public hearing to consider final authorization of the project.  The project would consist of grading, paving, curb and gutter, and sidewalks on both sides.  Assessment for the street and sidewalk improvements will apply as appropriate.

Recommendation:  Adopt a resolution-of-intent to schedule a public hearing for Tuesday, February 1, 2005 to consider the improvements.  Upheld on Consent Agenda Taliaferro/Cowell – 8 ayes.  See Resolution 335.

PW-2004-6 – LEESVILLE ROAD WIDENING – RESOLUTION OF INTENT ADOPTED

Design public meetings were held on May 28, 2003 and November 10, 2004 to present design information and preliminary right-of-way and easement needs for the Leesville Road Widening project from Millbrook Road to Lynn Road.  The project plans are approximately 75% complete.  It is now appropriate to schedule a public hearing to consider final authorization of the project.  The project would consist of paving, curb and gutter, sidewalks on both sides, culverts, signals, and a greenway path.  Assessment for the street and sidewalk improvements will apply.

Recommendation:  Adopt a resolution-of-intent to schedule a public hearing for February 1, 2005 to consider the improvements.  Upheld on Consent Agenda Taliaferro/Cowell – 8 ayes.  See Resolution 335.

GARNER WATER AND SEWER MERGER AGREEMENT – AMENDMENT #1 – APPROVED

The City currently has an existing agreement with the Town of Garner for merging their water and sewer system with the City’s.  Amendment #1 is for additional base water and sewer capacity to be purchased by the Town of Garner at a cost of $2,489,000, paid prior to January 1, 2006.

Recommendation:  Approve Amendment #1.  Upheld on Consent Agenda Taliaferro/Cowell – 8 ayes.

PROGRESS ENERGY MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING – AMENDMENT – APPROVED

An Amendment to the Memorandum of Understanding has been drafted between the City of Raleigh and Progress Energy to update the guidelines and schedule for the mutually beneficial planning and cooperation between the parties regarding the Convention Center Project and environmental remediation of a Manufactured Gas Plant Site #1 operated by CP&L from ca. 1870-1914 within the projected footprint of the new center.

Recommendation:  Approve amendment.  Upheld on Consent Agenda Taliaferro/Cowell – 8 ayes.

ENCROACHMENT – 5020 BABBLING BROOK DRIVE – APPROVED CONDITIONALLY

A request has been received from John M. and Deanna B. Williams to encroach on City right-of-way for the purpose of maintaining a newly constructed retaining wall.  A report was in the agenda packet.

Recommendation:  Approval of encroachment subject to conditions outlined in Resolution 1996-153 and being responsible for maintenance of the retaining wall.  Upheld on Consent Agenda Taliaferro/Cowell - 8 ayes.

BUDGET AMENDMENTS – VARIOUS – ORDINANCE ADOPTED

The agenda presented the following budget amendments:

Community Services - $57,335.00 – to set up the funds for RSVP to disburse funds to the appropriate line items as specified in the January 1, 2005 to June 30, 2005 six month Grant period.

Community Services - $204,936.00 – to set up budget Foster Grandparent Program (FGP) to disperse funds to appropriate line items as specified in the January 1, 2005 to June 30, 2005 six month Grant period.

Finance - $25,000.00 – to fund budget needs of general government appraisal and acquisition activity and to fund property expenses due to foreclosure proceedings.

Finance - $307,000.00 – to appropriate revenue received from miscellaneous income to provide funding to remit payment to Wake County for civil penalties collected by the City that are required to be remitted to Wake County Public School System per North Carolina General Statutes.

Fire Department - $2,000.00 – to accept funds donated by the Norfolk Southern Railway Company to purchase gas monitoring equipment.

Fire Department - $74,640.00 – to appropriate FY04 funds received from the cities of Cary, Chapel Hill, and Durham as their share of the jointly-funded Urban Search and Rescue Program.  Funds are currently in Account Number 100-0000-21725-000.

Public Utilities - $198,121.00 – to provide funds to reallocate funds received from joint venture partner Duke Realty to the Old Wake Forest sanitary sewer construction expense account.

The agenda outlined revenue and expenditure accounts involved in the various recommended budget amendments.

Recommendation:  Approval of budget amendment as outlined.  Upheld on Consent Agenda Taliaferro/Cowell – 8 ayes.  See Ordinance 759TF12.

TRANSFERS – VARIOUS DEPARTMENTS – ORDINANCE ADOPTED

The agenda presented recommended transfers in the Finance, Fire, Public Utilities and Public Works Department.  The agenda outlined the code accounts involved and the reasons for the recommended transfers.

Recommendation:  Approval of transferred as outlined.  Upheld on Consent Agenda Taliaferro/Cowell – 8 ayes.  See Ordinance 759TF12.

PW-2004-14 – STORM DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS – BID AWARDED TO WHITE OAK CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION OF NORTH CAROLINA – FUNDS TRANSFERRED

Pursuant to advertisement as required by law, bids were received December 1, 2004 for the Stormwater Drainage Improvement Projects, PW 2004-14, with White Oak Construction Corp. of NC submitting the low bid in the amount of $540,642.75.

This contract includes 13 storm drainage projects that were previously approved by City Council through the City Storm Drainage Policy that involves cost sharing with the property owners.  The projects generally involve solving problems such as eroded streams, pipe repairs, and clogged pipes.

MWBE participation level is 15.7%.

Recommendation:

Approve the low bid by White Oak Construction Corp. of NC in the amount of $540,642.75 and authorization of budgetary transfers to establish funding.

Transferred From:

655-9007-79001-975

Onslow Road Drainage Petition Project
$   6,550.00

655-9009-79001-975

Lake Boone Pl Drainage Petition Project
   23,225.00

470-9567-79001-975

Rembert Drive Drainage Petition Project
   22,100.00

470-9126-79202-975

4231 Standing Rock Way Petition Project
   15,300.00

470-9128-79202-975

4824 Yadkin Drive Petition Project

   50,000.00

470-9129-79202-975

4612 Radcliff Road Petition Project

   14,250.00

470-9130-79202-975

9213 Dakins Court Petition Project

   32,900.00

470-9127-79202-975

805 Currituck Drive Petition Project

   16,500.00

470-9236-79202-975

1300 S. State Street Petition Project

   59,483.00

470-9239-79202-975

2012 Quail Ridge Road Petition Project
   18,300.00

470-9239-79290-975

2012 Quail Ridge Road Petition Project
     1,800.00

470-9240-79202-975

3705/3709 Fernwood Dr Petition Project
   13,820.00

470-9241-79202-975

1909 Yorkgate Drive Petition Project

   20,100.00

470-9597-79202-975

7201 North Ridge Drive Petition Project
   18,600.00

470-9598-79202-975

2516 Dahlgreen Court Petition Project
   19,800.00

470-9599-79202-975

2609 Lynn Road Petition Project

     7,200.00

470-9622-79202-975

7913 S. Bridgewater Court Petition Project
        930.00

470-9623-79202-975

507 Transylvania Avenue Petition Project
     5,580.00

470-9625-79202-975

709/713 Hunting Ridge Rd Petition Project
   15,900.00

470-9626-79202-975

7535 Mine Valley Road Petition Project
     8,990.00

470-9627-79202-975

1315 Williamson Drive Petition Project
   12,445.00

470-9628-79202-975

308 Westridge Drive Petition Project

   18,000.00

470-9139-79001-975

Petition Projects



     6,523.94

470-8659-79001-975

Stormwater System Repair


  132,345.81










$540,642.75

Transferred To:

470-9632-79202-975

Stormwater Drainage Improvement Proj
$540,642.75

Recommendation:  Approval of low bid and transfers as outlined.  Upheld on Consent Agenda Taliaferro/Cowell – 8 ayes.  See Ordinance 759TF12.

PUBLIC UTILITIES FIELD OPERATIONS CENTER BUILDING ADDITION – BID AWARDED TO BORDEAUX CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, INC.

Pursuant to advertisement as required by law, bids were received and publicly opened by DTW Architects and Planners, LTD on December 16, 2004 for the Public Utilities Field Operation Center Building Addition.  Four single prime bids and a combination of twelve multi prime bids were received on December 16, 2004, for the construction of the Public Utilities Field Operations Center Building Addition, with Bordeaux Construction Company, Inc., submitting a single prime low base bid in the amount of $4,716,000.  The bid also included five add alternates.  Due to the bid prices, the City’s architect, DTW is recommending that all of the add alternates be included in the award except for low height shelving, which was in excess of the architect’s estimate.  With the base bid and four alternates, the project contract amount will be $4,883,511.  Bordeaux Construction Company, Inc., submitted an 11.5% MWBE participation plan.

Recommendation:
Approve the base bid and add alternates 1, 2, 4, and 5 of Bordeaux Construction Company, Inc., in the amount of $4,883,511 (transfer to be handled administratively).

Upheld on Consent Agenda Taliaferro/Cowell – 8 ayes.

PU-2005-1, 2, 3 AND 4 – SKYCREST/DOGWOOD ANNEXATION AREA AND FRENCH DRIVE ANNEXATION AREA – RESOLUTION OF INTENT ADOPTED

The agenda presented the following proposed Public Utility Projects.

P.U.-2005-1

Location:  Skycrest/Dogwood Annexation Area off Trawick Road.

Type of Project:  Installation of approximately 9,754 linear feet of 8-inch and 1,650 linear feet of 12-inch sanitary sewer main along with a 20 HP duplex pump station and 720 linear feet of 6-inch force main.

Estimated Cost:  $1,755,244

Assessment:  Inside City.  To be assessed on a per lot basis and area served.

P.U.-2005-2

Location:  Skycrest/Dogwood Annexation Area off Trawick Road.

Type of Project:  Installation of approximately 6,205 linear feet of 6-inch and 1,220 linear feet of 12-inch water mains.

Estimated Cost:  $425,635

Assessment:  Inside City.  To be assessed on a per lot basis and area served.

P. U.-2005-3

Location:  French Drive Annexation Area off Lead Mine Road.

Type of Project:  Installation of approximately 1,843 linear feet of 8-inch sanitary sewer main.

Estimated Cost:  $185,000

Assessment:  Inside City.  To be assessed on a per lot basis and area served.

P.U. 2005-4

Location:  French Drive Annexation Area off Lead Mine Road.

Type of Project:  Installation of approximately 1,535 linear feet of 8-inch water main.

Estimated Cost:  $168,500

Assessment:  Inside City.  To be assessed on a per lot basis and area served.

Recommendation:  Adoption of Resolution of Intent to schedule public hearings for the four Public Utility Projects for Tuesday, February 1, 2005.  Upheld on Consent Agenda Taliaferro/Cowell – 8 ayes.  See Resolution 336.

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

RALEIGH HOUSING AUTHORITY – CERTIFICATION OF CONSISTENCY – TO BE PLACED ON JANUARY 18, AGENDA AS A SPECIAL ITEM

The City’s Consolidated Housing Plan incorporates efforts by the Raleigh Housing Authority (RHA) to establish long range goals to provide affordable housing to very low-income residents.  Included in the Plan for fiscal years 2005-2010 is a description of the Raleigh Housing Authority’s goals for capital improvements and policies that support the needs of its residents, as well as the Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report and the Public Housing Drug Elimination Plan.  The Housing Authority has met with agency residents, and the RHA Board of Commissioners has approved the Plan.  The Raleigh Housing Authority has consistently been rated as a High Performer by the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).

The request for certification and has been reviewed by staff and determined consistent with the City of Raleigh’s adopted Five Year Consolidated Plan.

Recommendation:  Approve the City Manager’s signature on the Certification of Consistency.  

Mr. Crowder pointed out he withdrew this from the consent agenda pointing out he would like for it to be placed on the January 18 agenda as a special item.  Mayor Meeker questioned if this item is time sensitive and what Mr. Crowder’s concern may be.  Mr. Crowder pointed out he would just like an opportunity to study it further.  Mayor Meeker stated unless we hear later in the meeting that the item is time sensitive it will be placed on the January 18 agenda as a special item.

SEWER CAPACITY SALE STUDY – TOWN OF CLAYTON –APPROVED

Mayor Meeker pointed out he withdrew this item from the consent agenda pointing out his law firm has represented the Town of Clayton on some issues.  Ms. Taliaferro moved that Mayor Meeker be excused from participation in this issue.  Her motion was seconded by Mr. Crowder and put to a vote which passed unanimously.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted and asked Mayor Pro Tem West to take over.

The Town of Clayton has requested that the City of Raleigh consider their purchase of up to 1.5 million gallons per day (MGD) of sewer capacity.

Recommendation:  Approve the staff study of the requested purchase.  Ms. Taliaferro moved approval.  Her motion was seconded by Mr. Crowder and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in the affirmative except Mayor Meeker who was excused from participation.  The Mayor Pro Tem ruled the motion adopted.

E. M. JOHNSON WATER TREATMENT PLANT SECURITY IMPROVEMENTS – CONTRACT WITH SECURITY SOLUTIONS INCORPORATED – APPROVED

A contract of $388,093.86 has been negotiated with Security Solutions, Inc., to install a wireless network and access control system for the E.M. Johnson Water Treatment Plant.

Approve the contract with Security Solutions, Inc. (transfer to be handled administratively).

Mr. Crowder stated he had asked that this item be removed from the consent agenda questioning exactly what is being proposed is it a computer network or what.  City Manager Allen pointed out we have done a number of assessments, we have set up a computer network, we do need access control to the site pointing out this is very large sites.  He stated this is consistent with what we have done at the Wastewater and Lake Woodard facilities.  Mr. Crowder moved approval.  His motion was seconded by Mayor Meeker and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in the affirmative.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.

Mayor Meeker pointed out earlier there was a newspaper article which indicates the City of Raleigh’s Wastewater Treatment Plant would not release untreated wastewater into the river and he feels that should be strictly adhered to and expressed appreciation for the stance.

OPERATIONAL FACILITIES FOR MULTIPLE CITY DEPARTMENTS – EVALUATION – APPROVED AS AMENDED - REPORT TO BE PROVIDED

A contract of $194,200 has been negotiated with Carter Burgess for the Evaluation of Remote Operational Facilities for Multiple City Departments.

Recommendation:  Approve the contract with Carter Burgess (transfer to be handled administratively).

Mr. Crowder pointed out he had withdrawn this from the consent agenda as it seems like we are a step ahead of the game.  He questioned why we are going to master plan a remote operational facility when it has not been determined if the current facilities are adequate or if we are going to have remote operational facilities.  City Manager Allen explained the item pointing out the City Council authorized the purchase of additional land and appropriated money in the budget and authorized Staff to negotiate a contract with Carter Burgess.  He stated we see this as a first step.  He talked about improved vehicle deployment, more efficient operation, etc.  He stated we are already seeing inefficient deployment of some of our vehicles and operations and it is felt that this is the first logical step.  Mr. Crowder pointed out the contract talks about on-site charrettes and it seems like it is pretty much defined that we are moving in a certain direction.  He stated he understands the need for environmental assessments, etc., he just questioned if going beyond the first step.  Ms. Taliaferro questioned how this would be handled.  She pointed out the contract outlines an 8-step program and questioned when this information would be reported back to the Council and the decision making points.  City Manager Allen pointed out Staff can give the Council a report whenever the Council desires.  He pointed out generally in situations such as this the staff works through this and comes with a full recommendation to the City Council.  Mr. Crowder stated he like the idea of having some report back on what type sites and facilities are being considered and exactly what is being proposed.  Ms. Taliaferro suggested after Step 5 before we get into the master planning that the Council could be provided a report on what progress had been made so far.  Mr. Crowder suggested that a report be made to the full City Council after Step 5C so that the Council can see exactly what is being proposed and decide how to move forward.  Mr. Crowder moved approval of the recommendation with the understanding that a report would be provided to Council after 5C before further work proceeds.  His motion was seconded by Ms. Taliaferro and put to a vote which passed unanimously.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.

TRAFFIC – VARIOUS CHANGES – ORDINANCE ADOPTED

The agenda presented recommendations for a no parking zone on Carroll Drive and speed limit reductions on Daufuskie Drive, Dilford Drive, Dresden Village Drive, Drewbridge Way, Summer Shire Way and Woodwyck Drive.  The agenda had outlined the exact locations and the reasons for the recommendation.

Ms. Taliaferro stated she had withdrawn the traffic items from the consent agenda to express appreciation to staff for working on these projects.  She pointed out this type changes in the traffic code creates traffic calming without being a part of the traffic calming program.  What is being suggested improves the flow of traffic and safety.  She expressed appreciation to the staff for continuing to look at ways to improve traffic flow and traffic calming without having to go through the traffic calming program.  Ms. Taliaferro moved approval of the traffic changes as outlined.  Her motion was seconded by Ms. Cowell and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in the affirmative.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.  See Ordinance 760.

REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION

PLANNING COMMISSION CONSENT AGENDA – APPROVED AS AMENDED

Mayor Meeker presented the Planning Commission consent agenda indicating it would be handled in the same manner as the regular consent agenda.  He stated he had received a request from Ms. Taliaferro to withdraw Z-59-04.  Without objection that item was withdrawn from the Planning Commission consent agenda.

Ms. Cowell moved the Planning Commission’s recommendation on the remaining items on the consent agenda be upheld.  Her motion was seconded by Ms. Taliaferro and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in the affirmative.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.  The items on the Planning Commission consent agenda were as follows.

REZONING Z-58-04 – LOUISBURG ROAD CONDITIONAL USE – APPROVED; U.S. 401 NORTH CORRIDOR PLAN TO BE AMENDED

This request is to rezone approximately 62.25 acres, currently zoned Shopping Center and Residential-4 with Special Highway Overlay District-3.  The proposal is to rezone the property to Residential-4 Conditional Use (36.14 acres), Residential-10 Conditional Use with Special Highway Overlay District-3 (17.61 acres) and Shopping Center with Special Highway Overlay District-4 (8.5 acres).

CR-10766 from the Planning Commission recommends that this request be approved in accordance with conditions dated December 7, 2004; and that the US 401 North Corridor Plan be amended to relocate the Policy Boundary Line to include this newly designated retail area and to redesignate the recommended density on the R-10 CUD portion as medium density.  Planning Commission recommendation upheld on consent agenda Cowell/Taliaferro – 8 ayes.  See Ordinance 761ZC562.

REZONING Z-77-04 – LOUISBURG ROAD CONDITIONAL USE – APPROVED

This request is to rezone approximately 271.43 acres, currently zoned Wake County (Highway District, Residential-30 and Mobile Homes).  The proposal is to rezone the property to Residential-6 Conditional Use.

CR-10768 from the Planning Commission recommends that this request be approved in accordance with conditions dated December 2, 2004.  Planning Commission recommendation upheld on Consent Agenda Cowell/Taliaferro – 8 ayes.  See Ordinance 761ZC562.

SP-4-03 – THE DAWSON AT MORGAN – APPROVED WITH CONDITIONS

This request is to amend the originally approved site plan and allow the retail area of 3,905 square feet to be occupied by other commercial uses allowed in the Business District.  Staff recommends that uses allowed other than retail incorporate active pedestrian uses and street level activity.

CR-10769 from the Planning Commission recommends approval with conditions.  Planning Commission recommendation upheld on Consent Agenda Cowell/Taliaferro – 8 ayes.

SP-70-03 – THE WATER GARDEN MARKETPLACE – APPROVED WITH CONDITIONS

This request is to approve a 797,000 square foot structure comprised of 305,000 square feet of structured parking, 199,000 square feet of retail, 110 residential condominiums equaling 286,000 square feet, for a residential density of 10.3 units to the acre.  The site is 11.32 acres zoned Thoroughfare District.  This development is defined as a shopping center and is located within 400 feet of residential uses, requiring final review by the City Council.  A preliminary subdivision is required to be submitted due to the right of way dedication for Marvino Lane extension to US 70.  Two lots will result, lot 1, the shopping center will be 10.6 acres, lot 2 will be .6 acres, a residual parcel from Marvino Drive dedication and the remainder acreage will be right of way dedication.

CR-10770 from the Planning Commission recommends approval with conditions.  Planning Commission recommendation upheld on Consent Agenda Cowell/Taliaferro – 8 ayes.

END OF PLANNING COMMISSION CONSENT AGENDA

REZONING Z-59-04 – FOX ROAD – REFERRED TO COMPREHENSIVE PLANNING COMMITTEE

This request is to rezone approximately 17.46 acres, currently zoned Residential-4.  The proposal is to rezone the property to Residential-10 Conditional Use.

CR-10767 from the Planning Commission recommends that this request be approved in accordance with conditions dated December 13, 2004.

Planning Commission Chairman Everette explained the request, the Planning Commission’s discussion and recommendation.  Ms. Taliaferro stated she would like to look at the item in Comprehensive Planning Committee and so moved.  Her motion was seconded by Ms. Cowell.  Mayor Meeker pointed out when the committee discusses the item to look at quality of houses and stormwater.  The motion was put to a vote which passed unanimously.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.

SPECIAL ITEMS

PARKING – PILOT PROGRAM FOR TIERRED PARKING – TO BE EXTENDED TO CONVENTION CENTER PARKING DECK

The following item appeared on the December 7, 2004 Council Agenda.

It is recommended that a Tiered Parking Pilot Program be implemented at a monthly rate of $55 on the uncovered portion of the top level of the Convention Center Parking Deck.

With the success of tiered parking in Moore Square and Wilmington Street Station parking decks, staff has continuously monitored usage in other decks and has identified under utilization of the uncovered portions of the top level of the Convention Center Deck.  This under utilization creates an opportunity to offer parking on this upper, uncovered level at a reduced rate and generate new revenue for the parking fund.  The recommended program will provide a parking alternative that encourages downtown workers who currently park on-street to use off-street parking facilities for long term parking.  It is believed that the proposed program will expand the efforts to generate additional on-street, short term parking spaces that are vital for the success of downtown businesses and development.

Ms. Taliaferro had questions concerning the utilization of decks in the current program.  It was directed that the item be placed on this agenda for further consideration.

Ms. Taliaferro expressed appreciation for the report pointing out she now has a pretty good understanding of the program.  She moved approval of extending the tiered parking pilot program to the Convention Center Parking Deck as outlined and asked for another report on how it works.  She stated hopefully she could have the report before the Council gets into budget discussion so that they can see the impact on the parking program.  She stated she would like for the report to include information on how the tiered parking in particular is working.  Her motion was seconded by Mr. West and put to a vote which passed unanimously.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.

NEUSE RIVER RECLASSIFICATION – COMMENTS RECEIVED

During the December 7, 2004 Council meeting, the City Council authorized the City Manager to execute an agreement between the City of Raleigh and the Town of Wake Forest to merge their water and sewer system with the City of Raleigh system effective April 1, 2005.

It was directed that an item be placed on this agenda to receive a report from the City Attorney relative to what action the Council could take in order to reverse the reclassification of property in the watershed along Capital Boulevard.  City Attorney McCormick stated Council members received a report in their agenda packet which basically suggest that proceeding with parallel courses of action.  Mr. Isley stated he would like to be excused from participation in this item with the Mayor pointing out the vote will be taken and no discussion followed.

NEIGHBORHOOD PRESERVATION AND HOUSING TASK FORCE – RECONSTITUTION – NO ACTION TAKEN TO BE REVIEWED IN JULY

During the December 7, 2004 Council meeting, the Budget and Economic Development Committee by split vote recommended that the Housing Task Force be reconstituted so that they may continue their work on the various issues.  Administration would survey the existing members to see how many wish to continue to serve and report back to Council and the Council at that point would make a decision on number of members, etc.

A number of questions were raised relative to the need and charge to a reconstituted task force.  Therefore, it was directed that the item be placed on this agenda for further consideration.

Mayor Meeker stated the Council has discussed this and his sense is the Council would like to hold up on a decision as to whether to reconstitute the Task Force and let the initial enforcement start and review the question over the summer maybe in July of 2005.  Mr. Crowder moved the Mayor’s suggestion be approved.  His motion was seconded by Ms. Cowell.  In response to questioning, Mayor Meeker clarified that the motion is to not take any action on reconstituting the Task Force but review the question of whether there should be a Neighborhood Preservation and Housing Task Force in July 2005 but there would be no task force between now and then.  The motion as stated was put to a vote which passed unanimously.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.

Mr. West pointed out there may be some misunderstanding or misinterpretation of his comments relative to the Task Force and the effectiveness of the Task Force.  He stated for the record he feels they did do a great and outstanding job.

SP-10-04 – CROSSLINK CAR WASH – FAILED

During the December 7, 2004 Council meeting a hearing was held on the Planning Commission’s recommended denial of SP-10-04 - Crosslink Car Wash.  Following the hearing, a motion was made to approve SP-10-04.  However, that motion failed on a 4-3 vote (Crowder absent).  Therefore, SP-10-04 was not approved.

It was directed that the item be placed on this agenda to consider proposed findings of fact and conclusions of law relative to the denial of SP-10-04.

Mayor Meeker pointed out he knows it was a challenge for the City Attorney to draft the proposed findings of fact and conclusions of law as it was a split vote of Council.  Brief discussion took place on the status of Mr. Crowder voting on the issue with Mr. Crowder pointing out he has not looked at the tape of the meeting or a transcript of the meeting.  City Attorney McCormick stated since Mr. Crowder was not present at the meeting and has not reviewed the record he should not be eligible to vote.  Mayor Meeker moved that Mr. Crowder be excused from participation in this item.  His motion was seconded by Ms. Taliaferro and put to a vote which resulted in all members voting in the affirmative.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.

Mayor Meeker reported Council Members received the following findings in their agenda packet.
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WAKE COUNTY



   DE NOVO HEARING

IN RE:
SP-10-04


Crosslink Carwash, LLC


This matter came on for hearing before the Raleigh City Council at its regular meeting held on December 7, 2004.  The matter came to City Council as a result of an appeal taken by the applicant, Crosslink Carwash, LLC, from the denial of SP-10-04 by the Raleigh Planning Commission.  This appeal was made and hearing conducted pursuant to the provisions of Raleigh City Code (RCC) Sec. 10-2132.2(c)(3)b.  The appellant was represented by Thomas C. Worth, Jr. and Isabel Worthy Mattox, attorneys-at-law.  Smedes York, George York, Don d’Ambrosi, Will Spencer and Bill Martin appeared as witnesses for the appellant.  Mr. d’Ambrosi, Mr. Spencer and Mr. Martin were tendered as experts and accepted as such without objection.  The opponents to the site plan were not represented by counsel.  Johnny Farmer and Doris Burke testified for the opponents.  Steven Peden, W.B. Lewis and Mitch Lancaster appeared as rebuttal witnesses on behalf of the appellant.


The City Council heard the testimony presented, received documentary and illustrative material into evidence, and considered the arguments of counsel for the appellant and from those opposed to the project.  Based upon the evidence presented at the hearing, the City Council makes the following Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law.

Findings of Fact

1. The appeal from the Planning Commission denial of SP-10-04, Crosslink Carwash, was timely noticed by the appellant and filed in accordance with RCC 10-2132.2(c)(3)(b) thereby giving the City Council jurisdiction over this appeal.

2. The site in question is less than 100 feet from a residential property line.

3. All of the carwashing operations in the proposed plan would be carried out in an enclosed building as defined in RCC 10-2072(b).

4. The vacuum machines located on the property will not be in violation of the requirements of RCC 10-2072(b) or the City’s noise ordinance.

5. The carwash created by SP-10-04 would not operate between the hours of 11:00 p.m. through 6:00 a.m.

6. No transitional protective yard is required for this project.

7. The average street yards provided by SP-10-04 comply with RCC 10-2072(b).

8. The carwash would not have a full time attendant.

9. The carwash would not have a full time on-site security person or persons.

10. The only protection against patrons of the carwash creating excessive noise with their car ratios, tape players or CD players would be a sign at the entrance to the property asking patrons to “Please reduce music volume”.

11. A final stormwater management plan would be required before the carwash could be constructed.  SP-10-04 contemplates detention on site of the 2 year storm.

12. SP-10-04 provides for a landscape buffer of existing and new plants along the lot’s sides.  The plan also provides for screening of the dumpster location.

13. SP-10-04 complies with RCC requirements relating to off-street parking by providing at least seventeen spaces.

14. Light from the carwash would not affect the surrounding residences to any extent greater than the existing shopping center lights affect them.

15. The maximum height of the structure is 21 feet 4 inches.

16. SP-10-04 complies with all requirements for dedication of public facilities.

17. SP-10-04 is designed to be in unity of development with the existing shopping center.

18. The carwash would be across the street from a Raleigh Police Department substation.

19. The number of curb cuts on to Cross Link Road is reduced from two to one.

20. The carwash would add about 39 vehicle trips during the afternoon rush hour; 20 in and 19 out.

21. Crosslink Road is designated as a collector street.

22. Peak hour traffic generated by the carwash would not significantly increase automobile accidents; particularly those at the intersection of Rock Quarry and Crosslink Road.

23. The Certified Recommendation (CR) of the Raleigh Planning Commission dated June 24, 2004 denying the site plan designated as SP-10-04 was admitted into evidence upon motion of the appellant.  This CR notes that the Planning Commission finds that the surrounding neighborhood would be negatively affected by noise, traffic and light.

24. The existing shopping center area has generated over 2,000 calls for service by public safety agencies in the first eleven months of 2004.

25. Opponents of the carwash expressed concerns about detrimental effects to their neighborhood based on noise, light and traffic.

26. Carwashes may be and are located in Shopping Centers in other parts of the City.

27. The parcel covered by SP-10-04 is properly zoned for constructing and operating a carwash.

28. The operator of the proposed carwash proposes to police the property through a random periodic check by its company police force rather than having a security office on the premises at all times when the carwash is open for business.

29. Council Member Michael Regan made a motion to grant the appellant’s request to approve SP-10-04.  The motion was seconded by Council Member Philip Isley.

30. The vote on the motion was four (4) in favor and three (3) against.

31. Council Member Crowder was absent from the meeting.  The absence was excused by vote of the City Council.

32. Section 2.5(f) of the Raleigh City Charter mandates that five (5) affirmative votes are required to pass any action.

33. Mayor Meeker directed that Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law be prepared for City Council consideration at its January 4, 2005 meeting.

Conclusion of Law


The appellant Crosslink Carwash, LLC failed to obtain the necessary five (5) votes required to sustain its appeal and therefore, due to the operation of City Charter Sec. 2.5(f), the approval is denied and the plan known as SP-10-04 is rejected.

Mayor Meeker stated he would make the following suggestions:  Item #4 be amended to add at the first of the sentence, “The applicant presented evidence that. . .”  Mayor Meeker talked about Finding #12 pointing out Ms. Taliaferro was concerned about the dumpster location.  It was agreed to add a sentence at the end of #12 “The dumpster location is adjacent to a residential area.”

Mr. West questioned the relevance of Finding #18.  Mayor Meeker pointed out it is basically a listing of the findings, there is no particular conclusion drawn from that finding.  The conclusions are outlined at the bottom of the document.  Mayor Meeker moved approval of the findings and conclusions as amended.  His motion was seconded by Mr. West and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in the affirmative except Mr. Isley and Mr. Regan who voted in the negative (Crowder excused).  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted pointing out SP-10-04 could not go forward.

CLUSTER UNIT DEVELOPMENTS – POSSIBLE CHANGES – REFERRED TO THE PLANNING DEPARTMENT

During discussions on TC-7-04, Ms. Taliaferro had questions concerning cluster unit developments as it relates to the qualifying land size and suggested the Council would like to ask the Planning Commission to look at the regulations relative to density/cluster unit developments.  It was directed that the item be placed on this agenda for consideration.  Ms. Taliaferro pointed out when TC-7-04 was first developed it included changes in the requirements on the number of acres for cluster unit development.  She pointed out that was taken out of TC-7 but she feels it is something that the Council should ask the Planning Commission to study; that is look at whether the current regulations are correct and whether there needs to be some changes.  Mr. Hunt suggested that the item go to planning staff and let them review the issue and make any recommendations and so moved.  His motion was seconded by Ms. Cowell and put to a vote which passed unanimously.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.

TC-7-04 – TREE CONSERVATION REGULATIONS – APPROVED AS AMENDED; FEES AND CHARGES – PUBLIC HEARING AUTHORIZED; INTERIM ORDINANCES – PUBLIC HEARING TO EXTEND – AUTHORIZED; PDD – CLARIFICATION TO BE PLACED ON JANUARY 18 AGENDA
The City Council, in a special meeting held on December 20, 2004, discussed TC-7-04.  A number of questions were asked.  Administration was directed to provide additional information and it was directed that the item be placed on this agenda for further consideration of the text change.

Mayor Meeker:  Let me thank everyone for attending the special meeting.  I think it was helpful in hearing from everybody of getting issues in line; my understanding of where we are is the following.  I will recite this and we will hear a discussion from everybody.  But first let me do thank the Task Force, the staff and all those in the industry who worked on this.  My understanding is that the proposal that the Council is considering is to adopt the opposed ordinance from the Planning Commission with the following changes, one is that the urban forestry provision that Mr. Botvinick had drafted be added.  Secondly that on the root zone that go to 1.25 to 1 instead of 1 to 1.  I believe that was recommended by the Task Force and I believe there has been some support to that.  The third one, and be sure I get this right Mr. Botvinick, on the planting schedule that there be one caliber tree per 200 square feet within five years.  Is that stated correctly?  That is a rather technical amendment I believe you had referred to that.

Attorney Botvinick:  inaudible
Mayor Meeker:  So that will be the third change, the 4th change is that the effective date, instead of being in March would be May 1, 2005 and then finally something that I would prefer it stayed as it is that the amount of conservation for all zones including R-4 and R-2 would be 10% as opposed to the 15% for R-4 and R-2 and 10% for everything else.  I have talked – around I would like to see the 15% but my sense is we don’t have the majority support for that at this point.  Those are the comments that I have heard are there discussions at any of those points or comments and other points.

Mr. Hunt:  What was the first one?

Mayor Meeker:  That the Urban Forestry, the provision that Mr. Botvinick had drafted and the question raised by Mr. Padgett be included so that someone who was cutting their tree on an undeveloped lot or planting bushes would not be covered as only someone who is using heavy equipment.

Ms. Taliaferro:  Mr. Mayor, I have a question.  . . .if we have an effective date of May 1, for this ordinance are we then without any kind of tree conversation ordinance for two months.

Mayor Meeker:  That is a very good question.  Mr. Attorney.

Tom McCormick:  We have the same tree conservation ordinance that is in place that we have now.

Mayor Meeker:  That the temporary one would extend?

Attorney Botvinick:  The temporary one expires. . .inaudible
Mayor Meeker:  March 4th 

Ms. Taliaferro:  Right.  So between March 4 and May 1 we would not have anything?

Tom McCormick:  Unless you extend the other one now.

Ms. Taliaferro:  Okay that was my next question, can we extend the temporary ordinance until May 1 in this same action or does that take a separate action?

Tom McCormick:  I think probably it would be clearer to just to do it under a separate action.

Ms. Taliaferro:  Okay

Mayor Meeker:  That was a very good point; I thought of that last night, I didn’t follow up . . . thank you, yes Mr. West.

Mr. West:  Mr. Mayor.. . the Urban Forestry piece is that (inaudible) exempt people from permits and fees (inaudible)
Mayor Meeker:  No sir, I don’t believe it does, no. . . .the exemption is for some engaging in that activity.

Mr. Crowder:  Mr. Mayor I just have a question, if we are going to extend the temporary ordinance, why are we moving to May with the permanent ordinance just out of curiosity, what’s the rationale behind that?

Mayor Meeker:  Well, the discussion I had heard is that there are certain projects underway that have relied on the current ordinance that won’t be able to get their site plan in until some 4 months as opposed to 2 and that just about heard from people trying to reach at this point that people could agree with.  I think by extending the temporary ordinance we do have existing protection in place.
Ms. Taliaferro:  Mr. Mayor, would another way to approach that be that the exemption which I don’t know if we talked about that today, but exemption would be for site plans and subdivisions could we add PDDs to that are submitted prior to the effective date. . . would that. . . . .

Mr. Crowder:  I wouldn’t feel very comfortable with that.

Ms. Taliaferro:  Just another idea.

Mayor Meeker:  Mr. West?

Mr. West:  I don’t like to be very specific, but I have . . . (inaudible). . . . a project on New Hope . . . how. . .would be affected.

Mayor Meeker:  Do we know where that project is in the process . . .which one is that, is that ah. . . .

Ms. Taliaferro:  Olde town
Mr. West:  There has been a lot of community involvement with that.

Mayor Meeker:  That has been I guess 4 months to get their site plan and subdivision in.

Mayor Meeker:  Mr. Botvinick, do you know where that project is?

Mr. Botvinick:  I’m not . . . inaudible. . . .

Mayor Meeker:  Mr. Chapman do you know where that project is, or. . . Mr. Walker if you could just advise the Council without argument when that project is, that would help . . . .

Chuck Walker:  Sure, I could, yesterday we just got our NCDOT drive way permits after 10 months of review.  Ah, the site plan will not be and cannot be ready to meet that deadline.  The PDD Ordinance as it was written was very specific to the tree preservation portions of the PDD, it was covered in the open space, in the greenways, and the golf courses, and ah. . .so that has been set in motion and that was intended to guide that development for the next eight years.

Mayor Meeker:  When will the ah. . . subdivision or site plan be submitted?

Mr. Walker:  Ah, I can tell you Mr. Mayor. . . .I’m sorry it will not be done in the next four months.  It may be six months away but I don’t think you want to try garnering the ordinance just based on one site plan, it is important to us but ah, we couldn’t meet that deadline.

Mayor Meeker:  What percentage of tree conservation do you have?
Mr. Walker:  We had 40% open space and I believe we had 17% tree conservation when you put everything together but it may not meet the letter of the ordinance for its placement on the site.  Now we absolutely meet the amount. . .

Mayor Meeker:  . . . almost twice but the ordinance doesn’t require that.  Okay, thank you

Ms. Taliaferro:  This is why I suggested adding a PDD. . . PDD that have been approved by that date because they are so specific, PDD as we know from our earlier discussions its kind of a different animal than most of our other zoning categories because it does get into the master planning idea instead so I was just trying to find a way to protect the project like that when we have spent extensive amount of time in the zoning conditions of those PDDs discussing these very issues.

Mr. Crowder:  Mr. Mayor I have a PDD in my district right now where there is not a whole lot of discussion with the community about a lot of detail planning.  And for that reason, I am hesitate to extend that for that very reason.  If the case was that we did have a lot of detailed understanding and tree preservation was on the table then I might feel differently but that is not the case.

Mayor Meeker:  Mr. Attorney how do we normally handle effective dates as to PDDs as compared to site plan and subdivisions?

Tom McCormick:  I don’t believe that we’ve essentially grandfathered PDDs because those could take years and years to develop and they can be amended so now the question becomes how long would you really be extending that approval?

Mayor Meeker:  Okay, I heard that discussion and there seems to be a difference of opinion on Council, I guess I would be tempted to have the May 1 date and not have the PDDs but ah, that’s just my opinion.  Any further discussion from the Council?

Mr. Hunt:  On that issue?

Mayor Meeker:  On that issue or any other issues

Mr. Hunt:  Bill Padgett floated the idea of allowing anybody to clear a 1/8 of an acre with no permits.  Ah, I feel a little presumptuous bringing this up since the task force has been working for two years on the subject but I, you know when I read and I thought about that issue it seemed like to me they would make the whole ordinance more simple if you could do that as well as provide tree protection on infill which we have none now.  I don’t know, would it be appropriate you think, let me just ask the Tree Preservation Task Force have ya’ll consider that, the idea of allowing up to 1/8 of an acre per year to be cut with no particular permits.  Did ya’ll consider that at?

Mayor Meeker:  Mr. Mulder or Mr. Shear . . . you care to respond on that?

Mr. Mulder:  I think the Task Force is comfortable with the recommendations that we have forwarded to you and we’ve heard that recommendation but we let our recommendation stand.

Ted Shear:  I think part of that is covered in the idea of urban forestry definition that is, on an average if you left a certain amount of trees around you, you would have a lot of flexibility and this is sort of, kind of late at the table thing for us to really understand but we think we have covered that with this other thing that was created in reaction to concerns that Mr. Padget had brought to us.

Mr. Hunt:  There is nothing in the ordinance now that protects any trees on infill as I understand it.

Mr. Shear:  We were asked to look at infill from your last meeting and we received a memo from Ms. Williamson who was a witness here at the time, that . . . we looked at those parcels that were of concern and there are no infill as considered by the City, those are simply tear downs and rebuild new homes and when the Task Force considered it infill, we recommended that these ordinances be applied to an acre or above to hopefully capture most of that so that was our recommendation to you that we could stand by and we thought we were helping with most of the infill that would occur  but the kinds of things we hear citizens telling us with infill are not what the city considers infill.

Mr. Hunt:  Right, technically speaking it is not defined as infill but a tear down and rebuild. . .  . .

Mr. Shear:  But that doesn’t help us.  There is no place in the development process that we are allowed to regulate that catches that in that sense if I understand the law. . . .

Mayor Meeker:  The ordinance only applies to lots over 2 acres and anything less.  . .inaudible 

Mr. Shear:  Some of those examples were quarter acre lots

Ms. Taliaferro:  Right, Mr. Mayor

Mayor Meeker:  Ms. Taliaferro

Ms. Taliaferro:  I see that similar to any homeowner whether they keep their home or tear it down, if they keep their home and just take down all of the trees, we may not think that is a good idea but that is their right to landscape their property so, I think if we try and start applying this lots a quarter acre or less we are going to really have a lot of enforcement problems and other problems.

Mayor Meeker:  Okay, additional questions and comments.

Mr. Hunt:  Did ya’ll consider allowing the transfer of tree save from front yard to side yards for public schools.  I think that is an issue with some land planners when they are developing their school sites.  A lot of times they need that exposure on the front for children pickup I guess and so could they move that tree save from the front to the sides in the case of schools, did ya’ll think about that.

Mayor Meeker:  Sure, come forth to the microphone that would be very helpful.

Mr. Shear:  If I understand correctly, the way we have the front portion set up, this is in fact. . .in the development process here, then you can vary the width of that from 0 feet to 100 feet so there is considerable flexibility so it is not just a strip across the front so if you wanted to push it all to one side and make it 100 feet deep and may be don’t go near as far you would have a lot of flexibility there. . .did I answer that.
Mr. Hunt:  yeah, you did
Mayor Meeker:  Okay, are there additional questions or comments?  Okay Mr. West.

Mr. West:  I kind of want to go back, I am not sure that we reached any resolution related to the PDDs and I would say on this particular project I just want to reiterate a couple of things.  Ah, I think from a point of investing in this area that we kind of reached a turning point or defining moment and ah, I think its going to be something positive for the area and somehow with all that has been invested to this particular point, playing a role in the joint venture project for the school and the park and all of this, I am hoping that we don’t create a situation here that would stop something that I think is going to provide some real far reaching economic benefits for this particular area, so I don’t know when I leave here, I want to make sure that ah, we have some way of making sure that we don’t stop this project, I don’t think that this would do it here based on what Mr. Walker has said that ah, we have a pretty good tree preservation landscape requirement already agreed upon but I don’t want to leave it hanging in the air because this is a business.

Mayor Meeker:  Mr. Crowder.

Mr. Crowder:  I was going to say, like any zoning or site plan case you can always go to the Planning Commission or the City Council. . ah, for that reason, ah I don’t want to hamper a good project but there are also bad projects and for that reason I am very reluctant and would not support moving this any further.

Mayor Meeker:  Wait, one more comment from Mr. Walker and we will have for Council discussion. . go ahead.

Mr. Walker:  If I may just bring an idea forth, ah the City does have a history of providing limited exemptions for PDDs the latest was with the stormwater regulations I think you had 4 years to get your plans together.  Ah, if the Council would consider extending that into this ordinance I think that may solve it and not leave it open ended like Mr. Crowder is afraid and even if a PDD does have to come back during that time period then it could be all bets are off and it has to adhere to the new ordinance but one of the things this Council and the City ask developers to do is to do far reaching plans, lock them down so everyone knows exactly what they are approving and the developer and the community has done that and then an ordinance changes and the City doesn’t respect that approval then I don’t think you are quite playing fair.

Mayor Meeker:  Mr. Botvinick could you speak in the microphone please.

Mr. Botvinick:  if you had a PDD that actually had set aside for certain percentages of tree protection or park land like this case then that perhaps should be the ones to be exempted.  In other words if the Council is to say, planned unit developments that had x percent of land devoted to tree conservation those would be exempted.  If those PDDs which didn’t have any tree conservation wouldn’t be exempt and this way if you had something in process that was thinking about may be between now and May being adopted it might encourage them to set aside some percentage of tree conservation.

Mayor Meeker:  Okay let me just follow-up on that suggestion and lets suppose we said the PDD which has already been approved and had at least 10% tree conservation could take up to four years without coming in to compliance with the ordinance would that solve the problem.

Mr. Walker:  I think that would be consistent with history of the City.

Mr. Crowder:  Is that above and beyond the Neuse, currently what we have to have for natural areas, new buffers, things of that nature.

Mayor Meeker:  I can only speak for a specific, for Old Towne
Mr. Crowder:  And I am just talking about the ordinance not a specific project.

Mayor Meeker:  Okay

Ms. Taliaferro:  that would be 10% of. . . . that would be, if I understand it right there would be 10% of tree conservation outside of the first 30 feet of Neuse buffer.

Mayor Meeker:  That is okay, 10% counted what way.

Ms. Taliaferro:  Counted the same way as the rest of the ordinance.

Mayor Meeker:  Okay does the Council feel that’s a reasonable resolution of that issue.

Mr. West:  I can live with that.

Ms. Taliaferro:  And there is just a 4 year time frame.

Mayor Meeker:  Right.  Let me restate the motion and see where we are and just to remind the Council that this is a question of compromising we are trying to come to a fair resolution.  The motion is the following that we are approving the tree conservation ordinance as proposed by the Planning Commission with the following changes: first, the urban forestry provision be added; secondly, as the planning schedule be one caliber tree per 200 square feet within five years; third, the root zone be 1.25 to 1 instead of 1 to 1; and fourth, that for residential properties R-4 or R-2 below tree conservation get 10% instead of 15% recommended and all other properties would stay at the 10% recommended.

Mr. Hunt:  I thought R-2 was not included in the 10%.

Mayor Meeker:  Well, again, I would like to see it all be 15% of, then again I was trying to get consensus of Council.  I will leave it as it is that 10% for all residential, there is very little R-2 anyway.  Ah, the next . . . .
City Clerk:  that’s 10% for all others

Mayor Meeker:  Yes, that’s the motion.  That the effective date be May 1 of 2005 for site plans submitted or subdivisions submitted by the date, and in addition approve the PDDs that have 10% or more of tree conservation and have 4 years in which to build pursuant to their current plan and are not required to come and apply for a new ordinance until 4 years after May 1, 2009.  It’s really 4 years and 4 months.

Mr. Crowder:  Mr. Mayor, I’ve thought more about and I’m not going to support leaving it to May 1st.  There are other issues here about placement that are very critical and ah, I just can’t support it.  I am not going to support it.

Mayor Meeker:  Okay is there a second to that motion.

Mr. Hunt:  I would ah, is it appropriate I think to make a friendly amendment.

Mayor Meeker:  Okay

Mr. Hunt:  Change the R-2 to 15%.

Mayor Meeker:  Keep R-2 and below at 15%
Mr. Hunt:  Right
Mayor Meeker:  Okay that would be a friendly amendment.  Let’s see if that ah . . . .  Okay is there a second to that motion as amended.

Ms. Taliaferro:  What was Mr. Hunt’s second was a friendly amendment?

Mayor Meeker:  Yes, is there a second for the one with Mr. Hunt changes R-2 to 15%?

Mr. Hunt:  Mr. Mayor, frankly I think it’s a none issue.

Ms. Taliaferro:  Well, so do I.  I think for simplicity’s sake to keep it one percentage is easier.

Mayor Meeker:  Let me just ask is there a second for Mr. Hunt’s amendment to the motion.

Ms. Cowell:  I second it.

Mayor Meeker:  Now there is a second.  Okay let me go ahead and call the question only on Mr. Hunt’s amendment on the R-2 below being 15% all those in flavor say aye.

“Aye” - all
Mayor Meeker:  All those opposed?  Okay that has not been added 8-0 so the motion with Mr. Hunt’s amendment ah. . is there a second for that.

Mr. Regan:  Okay now this is the motion in total.

Mayor Meeker:  Right, we will deal with the temporary ordinance . . . . .

Mr. Regan:  I want to second that.

Mayor Meeker:  Okay, any further discussion.

Ms. Taliaferro:  I just want to clarify that the May 1, 2005

Mayor Meeker:  Applies to subdivision and site plans submitted after May 1, 2005 and PDDs which are currently approved has 4 years from May 1, 2005 for the current approval as long as they are at least 10% tree conservation.

Mr. Hunt:  May I make a comment before we vote.

Mayor Meeker:  You may make your comment.

Mr. Hunt:  Ah, I know the complication of this ordinance is to give it flexibility but we really and I know we will, we need to have a simple format with footnotes for the average person of the public to read since this is so complicated now, we got to have something simple to put forward. . . .

Mayor Meeker:  Mr. Hunt the generally the Planning Commission after the ordinance is adopted will put that out through the one or two pages something like that, I am sure that will be done here.  Okay all those in flavor of the motion say “aye.”  “Aye”. . . any opposed. . .”No”.  I believe that was 6-2 with Mr. Regan and Mr. Crowder voting in the negative.  Is that correct?  Okay the count is 6-2.  Ms. Taliaferro lets take up with the temporary ordinance you want to extend that from May 1, 2005 . . . .inaudible . . . .

Ms. Taliaferro:  I move that we extend the temporary ordinance through May 1, 2005.

Mayor Meeker:  I’ll second that.  Any discussion.  All in flavor say “aye” . . “aye” any oppose. . . then that will be unanimous.

Ms. Taliaferro.  If I could add one point here, we are discussing the different options of percentages to be saved and we came very clear that the reason the dividing line had been drawn between R-6 and R-4 for the percentages is because anything multi-family and commercial and office has a landscape ordinance.  And for single-family detached residential other than a street tree ordinance we don’t have any landscaping requirements, so one of the things that the home building industry has been discussing among themselves and with myself and some other councilors is perhaps we need to look at some kind of landscaping standard for single-family detached.  So I would ask that we ask the Planning Commission in conjunction with the Appearance Commission to take that issue under advisement and the building industry had come up with some suggestions so I can forward those on to the Planning Commission but I think that is something that we look at and make this a totally level playing field.

Mayor Meeker:  I am going to second Ms. Taliaferro’s and just so that everyone knows of what’s being at least talked about is the possibility of having at least two trees per house.  Okay so the motion is that go to the Planning Commission and Appearance Commission.  All those say ‘aye’. . “aye” any opposed. . .then it will be unanimous.

Okay we reached a milestone here in the City of Oaks and let me ah. . . I see members of the tree conservation task force out there smiling.  Ah. . . let me thank you particularly for all your hard work and you have done an excellent job.  Ah. . . this ordinance is one that has taken a long time to get here but it is one that I am sure is going to work out very well.  The Council will probably take a look at this in a year or 18 months to see how it is doing.  To see if any tweaks are needed. I am sure we will hear about any problems. . . .

Mr. Crowder:  Mr. Mayor

Mayor Meeker:  Yes. . . .

Mr. Crowder:  Prior to disbanding. . . .this group I would like to make a motion that we place Bob Mosher as a member of the Tree Conservation Task Force.  I take that as a ceremonial recognition service. . . .let me in particular thank Mr. Mosher and Mr. Botvinick for their hard work and I am sure there are many others as well who have been at the forefront the whole time.  Okay any discussion on Mr. Crowder’s motion.  All in flavor say “aye”. . Aye”. . .any opposed. . . .Okay that will be unanimous.  Anything else on tree conservation as we start off 2005. . . .

City Manager Allen:  Mayor Meeker if I could mention we still have the staffing issue and how we are going to cover that cost and I think we had recommended that we have at least two additional staff positions and clearly if you all may want May 1, we need to start recruiting, training and allocating dollars for . . . we suggest ah. . . actually a change is different from the ordinance and the permit fee in order to try to cover those costs.  Any directions that you have in that department would be helpful.

Mayor Meeker:  Well, thank you Mr. Manager I appreciate you bringing that up.  Yeah, I think we ought to look at through self funding what the permitting fees might be and is that something that you will report back to Council.

City Manager Allen:  Yes, sir.  That was included in your report.  You had asked for that information and we did indicate that we think it would take at least two staff members, forestry specialists and the way it is set up now, it’s a $100 flat fee no matter how big the development is we suggested that it really ought to be $200 per acre with it escalating per acre $200.  In other words, if you have 20 acres that takes 20 times more work than one acre does to review, inspect etc., and that might be a way to set the fee initially to cover cost and we could visit it after we see if it is enough to cover those costs.  But regardless to cost, even if you are not comfortable with cost allocation authorizes us to fill those two positions that will be helpful for us.

Mr. Hunt:  My impression of the penalties for violating this ordinance is so onerous that I just can’t believe that anybody would purposely do such a thing so that’s gonna ah. . .probably generate some money or may be not generate so much initial underwriting.

City Manager Allen:  Again, I don’t know if the penalties go to the schools or go to the city.

Mayor Meeker:  Mr. Attorney when is the next step if we were to adjust the fees is there something to hearing that comment on it.  Okay, it seems that we ought to get the process started and where we will end up on the fees remains to be seen.  When is the next time a hearing could be held on the issue of adjusting fees?
Tom McCormick:  Well, you can have it at a regular zoning hearing or you can have just a public hearing

Mayor Meeker:  Would that time normally be a zoning hearing or something like that. . .

Ms. Taliaferro:  I think so, it should be.

Mayor Meeker:  Well, let me make a two part motion one is we set this issue for hearing on the administration recommendation as we may well amend and second authorize administration start the hiring of the two staff persons. . . .

Mr. Crowder:  Second.

Mayor Meeker:  Any discussion?

Ms. Taliaferro:  I just want to make a comment that I really think this is a budget discussion and ah, an appropriate time for this is in June when we are discussing the next budget and I think that the staff can go ahead and start reviewing some in-house training with their folks and see how far they can get.

Mayor Meeker:  And just to respond on that I think we have a March hearing, but we probably wouldn’t have an effective date until at least after July 1st and in effect this will become part of the budget discussion.  All in flavor of the motion say “aye”.  Aye. . . .any oppose.  Okay then that will be unanimous.  Okay well let me thank everyone for their hard work again and we will move on to the next item.
Later in the meeting

Ms. Taliaferro:  I have one that is actually a clarification on the exemptions for the tree conservation.  I am confused.  Can we get a clarification of what we passed for the exemptions particularly with the PDD?

Mayor Meeker:  My recollection was that has PDD been approved. . . . that they could build pursuant to that PDD for 4 years from May 1, 2005 as long as they have at least 10% of tree conservation.  That was what I intended to say.

Ms. Taliaferro:  And is that 10% anywhere on their property or is that 10%. . . .

Mayor Meeker:  anywhere on the property it may be different under the current ordinance but within the property site.

Ms. Taliaferro:  Okay so that is for any PDD that is approved by May 1st.

Mayor Meeker:  No. . .approved now. . .the existing PDD

Ms. Taliaferro:  I think Mr. Hunt has the same question. . . Mr. Hunt is that satisfying?

Mr. Hunt:  I thought it was to May 1st because of what ah. . . Mr. Walker indicated when that would be from carrot to any one filing a PDD approved by May 1st increase.  . .

Mayor Meeker:  well, his PDD I think was approved isn’t’ that what he stated
Mr. Hunt:  I believe so.

Ms. Taliaferro:  yeah, but he also spoke in general about PDDs.

Mayor Meeker:  Well, if there is a motion to change what we passed, now would be the appropriate time.  Thank you.

(Inaudible.). . . 

Mayor Meeker:  Okay what was said on PDD, PDDs that have been approved can build pursuant to that PDD for 4 years from May 1, 2005.  So it’s really 4 years and 4 months provided at least there is 10% tree conversation within the site.

(Inaudible)
Mayor Meeker:  and that is what I intended to say. . . I believe the Clerk is confirming that was what was approved.  If there is a change to that then. . . .
Ms. Taliaferro:  Like I said, I am just asking for clarification because we talked about the current ordinance, the new ordinance which says 10% has to be in certain areas and that now for the PDDs that were are approved as of today. . . I mean when is the approval date.

Mayor Meeker:  Today

Ms. Taliaferro:  Approved as of today and they have four years after May 1, 2005. . . as long as they have 10% across the board . . .

Mr. Crowder: Right to file a site plan up until May. . . past in other words, anything between now and May will be able to pass.

Ms. Taliaferro:  Okay, but anything that is not approved between now and May 1 that is not a PDD they follow the new rule.

Tom McCormick:  That is correct.

Mayor Meeker:  As of May 1 they can file between them because their site plan is filed May 1 but not approved. . .
Ms. Taliaferro:  Yeah, right but if they have a PDD in the process and its not approved, I mean I’m concerned about PDDs like Bedford and. . .Falls River, Old Towne was one that we discussed.  I just want to make sure I understand how these rules apply.  To someone who is in a PDD discussion right now at a zoning level, you know the zoning conditions can take care of their tree conservation.  I am just trying to make sure that I understand.

Mayor Meeker:  Well, again the way that the motion read was PDDs that are not approved today but are approved by May 1st do not get the benefit of the exemption those are the only ones that were approved today.  That was the way the motion was made.

Mr. Hunt: What if you have a PDD that was approved that doesn’t have the tree save.

Mayor Meeker:  Well, then it doesn’t. . .unless you had a less 10% you don’t get the. . .
(Inaudible)
Mayor Meeker:  Well to amend your PDD and that was not part of the motion you are talking about something different now.  Why don’t we do this.  Since there is. .. I think we need to have some discussion on this, why don’t we have this issue only on special items at the next Council meeting so that people can find out what the facts are and where we are.

Mr. Isley:  That will be helpful

Ms. Taliaferro:  That’s a good idea.

Mayor Meeker:  Madam Clerk lets’ go ahead and list this as a special item on the next Council meeting with the PDD question as to whether we want to make any change on when PDDs are approved and are effective.

Ms. Taliaferro:  That would be helpful. . . thank you

Mayor Meeker:  Anything else Ms. Taliaferro?

Ms. Taliaferro:  That’s it.

Mayor Meeker indicated this item has been discussed and studied at length.  A special meeting was held to consider the issue and he would suggest approving the proposed ordinance as it came from the Planning Commission with the following changes:  1) add the “urban forestry” language, 2) in the critical root zone use 1.25 to 1 ratio; 3) and the planting schedule use the language about 1 inch caliber tree per every 200 square feet within five years; 4) effective date be May 1, 2005; 5) the amount of conservation or tree save be 10% for all zones.  Ms. Taliaferro questioned if the effective date is moved to May 1, if we would be without any type tree protection from March until May with it being pointed out the temporary or the interim ordinance could be adopted.

REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION OF THE CITY MANAGER

FALLS WHITEWATER PARK – UPDATE – RECEIVED; CONTRIBUTION – RECEIVED

Elizabeth Gardner pointed out the first draft of the Falls Whitewater Park was approved in the early 70’s.  She gave a history of efforts to develop the Whitewater Park and pointed out her group is grateful to have been included in the Parks Bond.  She introduced Greg Akers who has committed $2,000 to begin the permitting process for the Whitewater Park.  She pointed out the Whitewater Park was included in the bond program however was not included in Phase One.

Greg Akers pointed out he and his family are happy to contribute $2,000 to begin the permitting process for the Whitewater Park.  He stated everyone is very excited about the possibility and talked about the benefits of a whitewater park including educational, recreational, environmental, etc.

Mayor Meeker expressed appreciation for the contribution and pointed out the Budget and Economic Development Committee will be taking about the bond program next Tuesday.  Ms. Gardner again stated hopefully the Whitewater Park could be included in Phase One.

CONVENTION CENTER – OWNER CONTROLLED INSURANCE PROGRAM – APPROVED

Wayne Baker gave a detailed presentation relative to the Owner Controlled Insurance Program.  He gave a background including a presentation to the Budget & Economic Development Committee on August 24, 2004, updating to the Council through the Manager’s report on the project, RFP/RFQ process which begin September 1, Broker Presentation and approval of the parking deck project on December 20, 2004.

Mr. Baker explained OCIP is a financial tool which allows the owner to provide various insurance coverages to the contractors and subcontractors of all tiers.  It is commonly used for insuring projects such as bridges, arenas, roads and other large public projects.  He pointed out the City of Charlotte is currently using this program on the new basketball arena.  Mr. Baker went over the traditional coverage and OCIP coverage merits.  He pointed out OCIP provides high limits dedicated to the project at more favorable terms, greater program and project controls through emphasis on safety and claims management and allows increased MWBE participation.  He talked about OCIP coverage, additional coverage, project specific professional liability insurance, traditional cost as OCIP cost, etc.  He pointed out the City/County team evaluated broker finalist and recommended Marsh USA (AIG) because of favorable pricing, program flexibility, experienced team members, financial strength, North Carolina presence, similar project experience, other North Carolina experience and the fact that the demolition of the existing civic center would be included.  The OCIP Partners include Saska, Barnhill Joint Venture, the Construction Manager for the Parking Deck, Marsh as administrator, AIG as Insurer and the City of Raleigh as owner.  He went over the construction manager’s responsibilities, administrator’s responsibilities, insurer’s responsibilities, owners’ responsibilities.  He summarized by saying the benefits of OCIP is increased participation levels from local contractor/MWBE’s, broader coverage with higher limits, better rates due to volume purchasing, uniform safety program and one broker to manage the insurance needs.

Mr. Baker pointed out Administration recommends that the Council concur with recommendations of Marsh USA as the broker/administrator, authorize negotiation of a contract and continuation development of development of the OCIP program subject to final approval on January 18, 2005.  If all of this could be accomplished, it is anticipated at the January 18 meeting Council would be asked to authorize staff to execute a service agreement with Marsh USA as the OCIP broker/administrator, authorized a budget transfer and an amendment of the CMAR contract to implement the OCIP.  Mayor Meeker moved that the Council concur with the recommendation of Marsh USA as broker administrator and authorize negotiation of a contract and continuation of the development of the program as recommended.  His motion was seconded by Mr. West and put to a vote which passed unanimously.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.

REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION OF THE PARKS, RECREATION AND GREENWAY ADVISORY BOARD

DOROTHEA DIX PROPERTY – RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT – REFERRED TO THE DOROTHEA DIX MASTER PLAN COMMITTEE

On May 20, 2004, Janis Ramquist, of the Dorothea Dix Capital Park Coalition, asked the Parks, Recreation and Greenway Advisory Board (PRGAB) to consider endorsing the concept of using the remaining open space at Dorothea Dix (approximately 92 acres) for a park, and that the State offices remain with no expansion to the building footprints.  The Board referred this matter to its Parks Committee.  On December 16, 2004, the Board voted unanimously to forward a “Resolution of Support for Open Space Preservation on the Dorothea Dix Property.”  A copy of the resolution is in the agenda packet.

Ms. Tina Certo stated since the Dorothea Dix property is located in a neighborhood park search area adopted in the comprehensive plan and in an area of increasing urbanization and development, the City of Raleigh Parks, Recreation and Greenway Advisory Board supports open space preservation on the remaining Dorothea Dix property.  It is in the interest of current and future residence that such open spaces is preserved before development pressures further limit the opportunities to provide such resources to citizens in this ever developing area of the city.  Mr. Crowder moved the item be referred to the Dorothea Dix Master Plan Committee.  Without objection the item was so referred.

REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION OF THE BUDGET AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

WOMEN’S HEALING PLACE AND UPASS STUDENT PARKING – REMOVED FROM BUDGET & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE AGENDA

Mayor Meeker reported there was not a quorum at the last Budget & Economic Development Committee meeting therefore no action could be taken.  However, there are a couple of items that could be withdrawn from the Committee as no further action is needed and that includes the Women’s Healing Place as a site has been located by the group and there is no committee action needed.  The other item is the UPASS student passes which can be removed from the committee agenda as the Transit Authority is studying the item and will make a report directly to City Council.  The report was received and the two items removed from the agenda as suggested.

REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION OF THE COMPREHENSIVE PLANNING COMMITTEE

REZONING Z-79-04 – FALLS OF NEUSE ROAD – APPROVED

Mr. Hunt reported the Comprehensive Planning Committee recommends upholding the Planning Commission’s recommendation for approval of Z-79-04 - Falls of Neuse Road with conditions dated November 23, 2004 as outlined in CR-10754.  On behalf of the Committee, Mr. Hunt moved the recommendation be upheld.  His motion was seconded by Ms. Taliaferro and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in the affirmative.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.  See Ordinance 761 ZC 562.

REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION OF THE LAW AND PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE

ENTERTAINMENT ORDINANCE – POLICE REQUIREMENTS – MORATORIUM EXTENDED; ITEM RETAINED IN COMMITTEE

Chairperson Isley reported the Law and Public Safety Committee recommends extending the moratorium on enforcing the requirement for the presence of a person with power of arrest in the parking lots of establishments for a 90 day period.  On behalf of the Committee, Mr. Isley moved the recommendation be upheld.  His motion was seconded by Mr. Crowder.  Ms. Taliaferro stated extending the moratorium puts residents of her district in a bad situation therefore she could not vote for the extension.  Mr. Isley pointed out the Committee is waiting for information from the Police Department before taking a permanent action.  The motion as stated was put to a vote which resulted in all members voting in the affirmative except Ms. Taliaferro who voted in the negative.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.  See Ordinance 764.

STREET CONNECTIVITY POLICY – REMOVED FROM THE AGENDA WITH NO ACTION TAKEN

Chairperson Isley reported the Law & Public Safety Committee recommends the item relating to street connectivity policy be removed from the agenda with no action taken and so moved.  His motion was seconded by Mayor Meeker and put to a vote which passed unanimously.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.

FEEDING THE HOMELESS – JUDD PROPERTY – REMOVED FROM THE AGENDA

Chairperson Isley reported the Law and Public Safety Committee recommend that the item feeding the homeless – Judd property be removed from the agenda with no action taken.  On behalf of the Committee, he moved the recommendation be upheld.  His motion was seconded by Mayor Meeker and put to a vote which passed unanimously.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.

REPORT OF MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS

MORDECAI PARK/CAPITAL AREA PRESERVATION LEASE – REFERRED TO THE BUDGET & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

Ms. Cowell pointed out Council members received a letter from Capital Area Preservation pointing out they will not renew the lease to operate Mordecai Park after 2006.  She stated it would be appropriate to discuss the city’s plan and suggested the item be referred to the Budget & Economic Development Committee.  Mayor Meeker asked about the possibility of having this reviewed at staff level and get a recommendation from staff with it being pointed out by Ms. Cowell she would like for the staff to report to the Budget & Economic Development Committee as there is already a pending item involving the parties.  Without objection the item was referred to the Budget & Economic Development Committee.

HORSESHOE FARM MASTER PLAN – PROCESS – REFERRED TO COMPREHENSIVE PLANNING COMMITTEE

Ms. Cowell pointed out she had been contacted relative to the Parks Master Plan Process as it relates to Horseshoe Farms and the question is whether we are following the process that was adopted by the City Council.  She asked that the issue be referred to the Comprehensive Planning to determine if the process is being followed properly.  Ms. Taliaferro pointed out she has been following this issue and feels very confident the process is being followed.  She stated she has concern about spending so much time developing a process and the first time it is used we start questioning that process.  She stated we are moving forward with the plan and she does not want to hold up development of that plan as we discuss the process.  Ms. Cowell stated she wants to make sure the process is being followed as she is not convinced that it is being followed properly.  Mr. Crowder pointed out he had heard some of the same concerns.  Brief debate took place as to how to proceed, what committee and discussion that had taken place previously.  The motion was to refer Horseshoe Farm Master Plan Process procedure to Comprehensive Planning Committee which was put to a vote which resulted in all members voting in the affirmative except Ms. Taliaferro who voted in the negative.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.

City Manager Allen pointed out staff has heard some of the same concerns and he feels the process is being followed and staff would be glad to review with the Committee the process and the current status.

CITY COUNCIL SALARY – POSSIBLE INDEXING – REFERRED TO THE BUDGET & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

Ms. Cowell stated she would like to propose the possibility of City Council salaries being tied to some type inflation index.  She pointed out the salaries have not been adjusted and any adjustments would not apply to anyone on the current Council.  She asked to refer the issue to Budget & Economic Development Committee to look at some type increase pointing out it is harder and harder for the average person to serve on Council.  After brief discussion and comments the item was referred to Budget & Economic Development Committee.

CHRISTMAS LIGHTS – DOWNTOWN – REFERRED TO ADMINISTRATION

Mayor Meeker asked the City Manager to look at Christmas lights in the downtown area for 2005.  Maybe we should consider a program for having some type Christmas lights in 2005 and asked the Manager to look at the possibility, who could do it, who would pay, how it would work, etc.  Without discussion the item was referred to the City Manager.

NUISANCE BARKING – TRANSYLVANIA AVENUE – REFERRED TO LAW AND PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE

Mayor Meeker stated he had received a complaint relative to nuisance barking from Emanuel Aretakis, Transylvania Avenue.  He asked that the issue be referred to the Law & Public Safety Committee.  The item was so referred.

CITY COUNCIL LIAISONS – INFORMATION REQUESTED

Mayor Meeker pointed out Mr. Hunt and Ms. Cowell served as Liaison on various committees and requested the City Clerk to provide a listing of the various positions they hold for review by the Council.

LONGVIEW GARDENS – COMMENTS RECEIVED

Mr. West pointed out recently at the ECAC there was discussion about the decline in area of Longview Gardens.  He stated he would get the letter and information to the City Manager and ask the Manager to look at possibilities of different type programs etc., such as encouraging homeownership, rehabilitation, etc.  He stated may be the Community Development Department could look at the area as it is becoming a significant problem.  He would just like some feedback on what could be done to help the area.  The item was referred to Administration.

HOMELESS CAMPS – COMMENTS RECEIVED

Mr. West indicated just prior to Christmas there was a newspaper article concerning homeless camps in the city and the fact that people were notified that the camps had to be shut down.  He stated he was glad that problem was worked out and pleased with the decision to allow the people to stay.  He pointed out however in the article there was a suggestion that the City could possibly designate a piece of ground which could be used for legal encampments.  He stated he thought this item had been brought up before and had been referred to the ending homelessness task force. Mayor Meeker pointed out the Task Force is working on the issue but he does not feel the City of Raleigh or any other city should have designated camp sites and stated he feels the task force should just continue their work.  The comments were received.

CIAA – COMMENTS RECEIVED

Mr. West congratulated the Mayor for his work in the pursuant of the CIAA Tournament remaining in Raleigh.  He stated the Mayor went beyond the call of duty and worked very hard and did a great job and offered thanks to the Mayor pointing out many people in the community and in southeast Raleigh in general are very appreciative of the Mayor’s efforts.  Mayor Meeker expressed appreciation for the comments and appreciation to the others involved in the efforts.  He stated there were two things that have been agreed upon and that is that we would have the best CIAA tournament ever this year and that all will keep our eyes open for other opportunities.

CAROLINA BALLET – SUPPLEMENTAL FUNDING – REFERRED TO THE BUDGET & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

Mayor Meeker asked to refer to the Budget & Economic Development Committee an item to look at a request from Carolina Ballet for supplemental funding.  Without objection the item was so referred.

CITY STAFF – COMPLIMENTS RECEIVED

Mr. Crowder complimented the Raleigh Police Department pointing out he was recently at a convenience store on Jones Franklin Road and the proprietor told about his daughter being stranded and AAA was not responding.  A police officer went to her rescue and helped her out of a bad situation.  The proprietor of the store was very appreciative and Mr. Crowder complimented that type activity.  Mayor Meeker pointed out he recently saw a motorist whose tail pipe was dragging on the street and he saw a police officer actually trying to help the person tie up the tail pipe to the car so that the motorist could proceed and that type acts of kindness goes a long way of improving image.

Mr. Hunt stated he would like to compliment city employees in general.  He pointed out he had worked around City Hall for a long time and he is continually amazed at the quality of the people we have running the City.  He commended all for a job well done.

Mr. West pointed out there was a problem with a house in his area just before Christmas, actually on Christmas Eve.  He stated he called the Inspections Department and an inspector responded the same day and got the problem resolved.  He complimented City employees on their work.

CONVENTION CENTER – COMMENTS RECEIVED

Mr. Crowder pointed out he recently spoke with the NCSU Dean of the College of Design and from Auburn University pointing out they are critiquing the design efforts at the convention center.  He stated as soon as their work is done they would forward that to the City Council.  The comments were received.

ARTSPLOSURE – COMMENTS RECEIVED

Mr. Isley indicated he and his family attended Artsplosure First Night Activities and it was a great success.  He expressed appreciation for all the hard work and complimented the movement of the activities which made BTI the vocal point.  He stated it was a job well-done.  The comments were received.

APPOINTMENTS

APPOINTMENTS – VARIOUS ACTIONS TAKEN

The City Clerk reported the following results of the ballot vote.

Housing Appeals Board – One Vacancy – Claudia Nicole McClinton – 7 (All but Regan)

Fireman’s Relief Fund – Board of Trustees – One Vacancy – Lynn Johnson – 7 (All but Regan)

Human Relations Commission – Five Vacancies – Eugene Weeks and Wiley M. Davis – 5 each (Crowder, Cowell, Taliaferro, Meeker, West)

Raleigh Transit Authority – One Vacancy – Joseph M. Johnston has been nominated.  Mr. Crowder nominated Tony Andruzzi.  The item will be carried over to the next meeting.

Substance Abuse Advisory Commission – One Vacancy – No nominees

Wake County Keep America Beautiful – One Vacancy – No nominees

The Mayor announced the appointment of Claudia Nicole McClinton to the Housing Appeals Board, the reappointment of Lynn Johnson to the Firemen’s Relief Fund and the reappointment of Eugene Weeks and Wiley Davis to the Human Relations Commission.  The other items will be carried over until the next meeting.

NOMINATIONS

ARTS COMMISSION – VACANCY ANNOUNCED

A letter of resignation has been received from Ann Tharrington, therefore there is one vacancy for consideration.  No nominations were made.  The item will be carrier over until the next meeting.

CONVENTION CENTER COMMISSION – NOMINATIONS MADE

The terms of Steve Cadwallader and Eric Tannery both expire in February.  Both are eligible for reappointment, have good attendance records and would like to be considered for reappointment.  Ms. Taliaferro nominated both for reappointment.  The item will be carried over to the next meeting.

HOUSING APPEALS BOARD – ONE VACANCY

The Clerk reported she had made an error and there were actually two vacancies on the Housing Appeals Board.  Ms. McClinton was appointed to fill one therefore there is one remaining vacancy.  Ms. Taliaferro nominated Isabel Worthy Mattox.  The item will be carried over until the next meeting.

REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION OF THE CITY CLERK

TAXES – REFUNDS – RESOLUTION ADOPTED

A resolution was included in the agenda packet adjusting, rebating and/or refunding penalties, exemptions and relieving interest for late listing of property for ad valorem taxes.  Adoption of the resolution is recommended.  Mayor Meeker moved approval.  His motion was seconded by Ms. Taliaferro and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in the affirmative.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.  See Resolution 337.

MINUTES – DECEMBER 7, 2004 – APPROVED AS PRESENTED

Council members received in their agenda packet copies of the minutes of the December 7, 2004 Council meeting. Mayor Meeker moved approval of the minutes as presented.  His motion was seconded by Ms. Taliaferro and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in the affirmative.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.

ASSESSMENT ROLLS – VARIOUS – RESOLUTIONS ADOPTED SETTING PUBLIC HEARINGS FOR FEBRUARY 1, 2005

The following preliminary assessment rolls were presented.  Adoption, which would set a public hearing to consider confirmation of cost on Tuesday, February 1, 2005, is recommended.

Water AR 1258 - Globe Road

Water AR 1258A - Globe Road

Water AR 1260 - Tarheel Clubhouse Road

Water AR 1260A - Tarheel Clubhouse Road

Paving AR 891 - Memorial Drive

Sewer AR 1261 - Memorial Drive

Sewer AR 1261A - Memorial Drive

Sewer AR 1263 - Cowden Court

Sewer AR 1267 - Garner Road

Sewer AR 1267A - Garner Road

Paving AR 892 - Litchford Road Phase III

Sidewalk AR 344 - Litchford Road Phase III

Mayor Meeker moved adoption of the preliminary assessments rolls as presented.  His motion was seconded by Ms. Taliaferro and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in the affirmative.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.  See Resolutions 338, 339, 340, 341, 342, 343, 344, 345, 346, 347, 348 and 349.

CLOSED SESSION

PERSONNEL EVALUATIONS – CITY ATTORNEY AND CITY CLERK – HELD

Mayor Meeker stated a motion is in order to enter closed session pursuant to NCGS.143-318.11(a)(6) to perform the annual performance reviews of the City Attorney and the City Clerk for the period July 1, 2003 through June 30, 2004.  Mr. West moved approval of the motion as read.  His motion was seconded by Mayor Meeker and put to a vote which passed unanimously.  The Council went into closed session at 2:35 p.m.

The Council reconvened an open session at 3:59 p.m. with Mayor Meeker announcing the Council had reviewed the City Clerk and the City Attorney and both reviews reflected top performances of the two employees.  The Council is particularly pleased with these two long-term employees both of whom serve as very professional employees.  He stated the Council voted that the City Clerks benefits package remain the same however that she be allowed to accumulate up to 60 days vacation rather than the present 50 and that her annual salary be increased from $91, 050.00 to $95,000.00 effective July 1, 2004.  

Mayor Meeker stated the City Council voted that the City Attorney’s benefit package remain the same and that his annual salary be increased from $164,325.00 to $172,500.00 effective July 1, 2004.  Mayor Meeker again stated the Council is very pleased with these two long serving, faithful and very professional employees.  He thanked the City Clerk for trying to keep up with his “high speed and sometime rambling motions” and the City Attorney for “trying to keep him in line most of the time.”  The Mayor announced the meeting recessed at 4:00 p.m. to be reconvened at 7:00 p.m.

The City Council of the City of Raleigh met in regular reconvened meeting on Tuesday, January 4, 2005 at 7:00 p.m. in the City Council Chamber, Raleigh Municipal Building, Avery C. Upchurch Government Complex, Raleigh, North Carolina, with all members present except Mr. Hunt and Ms. Cowell who during the afternoon section of the meeting were excused from this portion of the meeting.  The Mayor called the meeting to order and the following items were discussed with action taken as shown.

REQUEST AND PETITION OF CITIZENS

HUMAN RELATIONS COMMISSION MEMBER – FRANCIS J. HALE – COMMENTS RECEIVED

Francis J. Hale, Human Relations Commission, had requested permission to discuss questions and concerns about the work of the Commission.  Mr. Hale was not at the meeting therefore the item was deferred.

Later in the meeting, Mr. Hale appeared and presented the following prepared statement.

I am in the last year of service, and I want to bring to your attention the minority opinion of the commission.  As volunteers that meet once per month, there is very little time for debate or discussion.  In giving you this report, I believe you will gain useful insight into problems the commission has elected to not to discuss.  Before I begin, let me state clearly that I have the highest regard for our current chairman, Connie Crumpler, and her predecessor Eugene Weeks.  Connie is one of the most patient, good-natured, considerate and accommodating individuals I have ever met.

During my first few months on the commission, I noticed that we never had a private citizen come to us with a complaint of discrimination, neither black nor white, straight or bent.  It was always someone with a vested interest in racial bias who wished to call our attention to an impending catastrophe.

As an example, a state employee representing the HRC came before us with the news that he had eight alleged cases under investigation of hate crimes in the Wake County School system.  I was shocked!  The News and Observer, that tireless watchdog of the human spirit, had made no mention of this peril.  Was I remiss in my effort to stay abreast of such horrid events?  The gentleman also informed us of a distribution of hate mail in Raleigh and requested the action of the RPD to conduct a full inquiry and nothing less.

As I was new to the commission, I waited for someone else to speak, to inquire as to the nature of the offenses.  When no one else spoke, I asked the gentleman what the NATURE of the hate crimes had been.  He seemed somewhat stunned by my inquiry, but after a moment, advised me that they were essentially, verbal in nature.  Verbal? School Children”  I asked the gentleman if he thought it was unheard of for children to call one another nasty names on the playground.  When he agreed that this could happen, I asked him if perhaps these children might not appreciate the force of the words, and did this really warrant an official inquiry?  He talked about an instance of use of words by people unfamiliar with the English language.

He then told us of the hate mail, but had no copy to present, as I recall, nor could he cite the actual text.  He replied that he was investigating the matter and would contact us upon conclusion.

Finally, the gentleman brought up the subject of a complaint filed by several Russian immigrants who had elected to settle in the mountains of NC.  It seems the immigrants felt their ethnicity was not being embraced by the mountain folk.  They complained that the people were standoffish and reserve.  My reply to this statement was to remain the gentleman that in a democracy, with which the Russians were unfamiliar, it is the duty of the minority to get along with the majority.  Mountain folk of NC sided with the Union during the civil war and have paid a dear price for it.  The manner is customary and not hateful.

Most recently, the commission has taken it upon itself to affirm the sexual fulfillment of those who would deviate from the sexual norm, such as homophiles, pedophiles, necrophilia and the like.  While accepting the majority, the minority is puzzled why subjects such as the association of blacks with crime, the consequent lack of development in south Raleigh, and the ever increasing numbers of illegal aliens are ignored.

We took it upon ourselves to refute the USA PATRIOT ACT as an infringement of constitutional rights, when there was not a one of us on the commission; myself included, who could explain the purpose of the act, or assess its consequences.

The HRC has out lived its usefulness.  Established to solve problems of racial integration in the 70’s its work is done.  The 500,000 taxpayer dollars distributed by the commission accounts solely for its continued existence.

I recommend that the commission be divested of its 500k for a period of four years.  At the end of that period, examine the facts and see if any of the current recipients have suffered.  As most of them receive less that 7% of their funds from the commission, it is unlikely they will fail.

Instead, use the city council to make the citizenry aware of these charities.  If they meet the test of the public scrutiny, like the victims of the pacific tidal waive, there may well be more that $500,000 available to worthy servants.

Mr. West questioned what Mr. Hale meant when he referred to “deviate from the sexual norm” with Mr. Hale pointing out he was referring to discussions relative to revising the mission statement.

Mayor Meeker expressed appreciation to Mr. Hale for his remarks pointing out his concerns would be included in budget deliberations.

CAPITAL CITY BAND EXPO – REPORT RECEIVED – REQUEST FOR ADDITIONAL SUPPORT – REFERRED TO BUDGET DELIBERATIONS

Ray Pittman, Chairman of the Capital City Band Expo, explained his efforts and the City’s involvement in the first Capital City Band Expo.  He expressed appreciation for the City’s support and pointed out on October 23, twenty (20) bands from across the state participated in the spectacular event.  The event resulted in the Cary High School Band being awarded the Capital Cup Trophy.  He pointed out the Cary High School Band received a replica of the trophy that will be theirs to keep.  Mr. Pittman presented the Capital Cup to the City of Raleigh for safe keeping until the presentation next year pointing out he hopes the City will find a very prominent spot to display the Cup.  He talked about the very positive feedback received from many of the people who attended the event.  He pointed out one of the points in the Capital City Band Expo was to try to generate revenue for the First Note program.  He stated on December 13, 2004 they were able to contribute $2,000 to the Community Music School.  The Executive Director of the Community Music School expressed appreciation to the City for their support and to the Sanderson High School Band Boosters.  She told of the work of the Community Music School and how the funds will be used to encourage students from low income areas who pay $1 a week for music lessons.  She encouraged the Council to continue its support to this program.

Mayor Meeker stated he did attend and participate in the awarding of the Capital Cup Trophy and pointed out it was a wonderful event.  In response to questioning, City Manager Allen pointed out staff would be glad to try to come up with a very prominent and safe spot to display the Capital Cup.  Mayor Meeker suggested the funding request be referred to the City Manager for inclusions in next year’s budget discussions.

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT – SALE OF PROPERTY AT THE CORNER OF BLOUNT AND DELWAY – PUBLIC HEARING AUTHORIZED

John Sibert, Hobby Properties, had requested permission to discuss with the City the sale of a parcel at the corner of Blount and Delway under Economic Development Statute.  He explained the development in the area and pointed out we are talking about a .1 acre parcel zoned R-20 which is currently vacant and probably unbuildable.  He talked about including that piece of property in the development he is representing which will help create tax base and tax revenue in what is now a blighted area.

City Manager Allen pointed out the Council had authorized this to be sold under Economic Development statute.  Mr. Sibert has to explain the economic benefits of this proposed sale.  Brief discussion took place as to the procedure to be followed with it being pointed out this probably requires a public hearing.  The item was referred to the City Attorney to determine the appropriate process and the City Council has already authorized the sale of the property through the Economic Development statute and if a public hearing is required that it be scheduled for January 18, 2005.

PARKS BOND ISSUE – COMMENTS RECEIVED – TO BE INCLUDED IN BUDGET AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE DISCUSSIONS

Marsha Presnell-Jeanette, 618 Stacy Street, presented the following prepared statement.

I am here tonight representing a group of park support organizations who, like me, are eager to see the very popular 2003 Parks Bond implemented.  We represent a diverse group of people in this City who appreciate and have worked hard to support parks and open space, and helped win overwhelming voter approval of the 2003 park bond package.  These park supporters include: People for Parks, Community Advocates for Parks in SE Raleigh, Partners for Environmental Justice, Friends of Pullen Park, Whitewater Park advocates, skatepark advocates, and greenway advocates.  So that we don’t take any more of your time tonight, I would like to request that my comments be included in the record for the budget public hearing to be held later this evening.   

We are aware that the Parks Bond, and how to pay for it, has been referred to the Budget and Economic Development Committee, and we would like to publicly thank you for taking this active step toward finding a way to get these bond projects going.  We will actively follow this process and keep our membership appraised of your progress.  

In advance of your committee discussions, we would like you to know that we have collectively reviewed this year’s adopted budget, and we would like to make recommendations for a revision of the priority funding for 2003 bond projects in the budget.  I have a handout for each of you that outlines our recommendations.  

The first column is the projects and budgets that were approved in the referendum, the second column is this year’s adopted budget, the third column shows that no funds have been committed or expended to date on these projects, and the fourth column is our group recommendation for the FY 05-06 budget.

In reviewing the adopted budget, we were disappointed to note that a couple of very important projects that won wide public support were not included for funding – the Pullen Park improvements and the whitewater park on the Neuse River.  Our budget recommendation is not very different from this years adopted budget, but it does fund these two projects in full.

The Chavis Park and Pullen Park projects in the bond are both extremely popular and badly needed.  The recommendations of the Carousels Task Force were approved by City Council this past summer and these two budget items are necessary to fund most of these recommendations.  

It makes good economic sense to take care of Chavis Park and Pullen Park as we continue to envision a lively downtown core.  These carousels are a significant regional tourist destination – just ask any family with young children who has friends or relatives come into town.  Pullen Park is the most highly visited park in our system and brings people into town for the day, who then also spend money at restaurants and retail establishments.  These carousels are economic engines and historic jewels that should be properly cared for.  From the curator of the Herschell Carousel Museum I have learned that Raleigh’s two carousels are the only two publicly owned and operated carousels still housed in structures with dirt floors.

As noted in the Carousels Task Force report, if we protect the carousels, enhance their housing, and creatively market these amusements, both Chavis and Pullen Park will continue to be visitor destinations for generations to come.

In summary, we are grateful to you for referring the issue of how to pay for the parks bond projects to the Budget and Economic Development Committee – and we ask you to expedite this process and get the bond projects that we have recommended in our spreadsheet going as soon as possible.  

Please don’t leave out Pullen Park or the whitewater park again!  These projects --- in addition to the Walnut Creek Interpretive Center, Chavis Park improvements, Sanderford Rd. Neighborhood Center, the skate park, Mordecai Historic Park, parkland acquisition and greenway connections -- are the most popular projects with the public and will bring significant visitors and economic and quality of life benefits to our City.   We would also like to ask Council to encourage staff to advance the RFP for design/development of the carousel houses at Chavis and Pullen.  

Thank you for your attention to our suggestions – and happy new year!

Approximately 50 people stood in support of her remarks.  Mayor Meeker expressed appreciation for the comments stating they would be taken under consideration when the issue is discussed in Budget & Economic Development Committee and Budget Deliberations.

ADVERTISING PROPOSAL – PRESENTATION – NO ACTION TAKEN

Shakur Williams, The Lettering Guide, 527 South East Street, gave a detailed history of his life, residency and educational endeavors.  He talked about patenting service and why he moved to the area.  He explained he would like to get approval to set up advertising kiosks as well as bus advertising in the City pointing out the advertising would include a wide range of amenities programs.  He stated he would like an opportunity to work with the City and design an advertising program.  The advertising program would provide ease and better pedestrian circulation, information and help with historic buildings, etc.  He talked about financial assistance that could be provided by the City.  He stated he does not have a formal program he would just like to work with the City in developing a program.

City Manager Allen pointed out Mr. Williams had met with staff and the Transit Authority on several occasions and presented his request but at this time the City and the Transit Authority does not allow interior advertising or bus shelter advertising; however, if such a program is pursued, Mr. Williams would be able to present a proposal.  No further action was taken.

GH-2-98 – BREEZEWOOD CONDOMINIUM PROJECT – REQUEST FOR EXTENSION OF SUNSET – REFERRED TO THE CITY ATTORNEY

Harold A. Yelle, II, representing Breezewood of Raleigh and PCS Homes of North Carolina pointed out there seems to be a problem of interpretation with the sunset and approval and re-approval of Breezewood.  He gave a brief history of the approval process starting with the preliminary plan approval in 1998.  He presented the following information.

· The preliminary plan was approved on 8/17/98, under City File #GH-2-98.

· Grading Permit for the site was issued on September 17, 1998 under Transaction #11814.  This permit is still active.

· Construction drawings prepared by Barrett Kay & Associates were approved in December 31, 1998.

· Quality Build moved forward with construction in 1999.

· The decision by Breezewood to move forward with construction was based on required improvements of Dunn Road set forth in the Falls River PUD Documents approved by City of Raleigh City Council

· Delays by Falls river developers in the construction of Dunn Road improvements severely retarded sales of Breezewood Condominiums.

· Dunn Road improvements were started in January 2001.

· September 11, 2001 crushed sales at Breezewood until mid 2002.  Sale still lagged below expectations for the remainder of 2002.

· March 2003-PCS Homes joined Breezewood of Raleigh to offer more variety in product.  Sales of all units are proceeding at expect pace.  140 units of 340 units have been constructed.

· Based on letter of Preliminary Plan Approval issued 8/17/98.  This project met all requirements of Sunset Provision in the letter of approval.

· The final subdivision plat, recording all right-of-way, was recorded in BOM 1999 Pg 576 of the Wake County Registry.  Further this plat was approved for recordation by the Planning Department on 3/20/99.

· Original site design provided run off limits to R-4 run off rates for the 2 and 10 years storms.  No additional storm water detention will be required by city staff.

· The site meets nitrogen levels of 10# per acre as designed.  Wetland restoration fund payment would be required to meet 3.6# per acre nitrogen levels.

· Vested rights have been established for this project.

· No one from planning or Inspections Department advised developer and builder in late summer 2003 meeting that sunset provision was at hand and a request for extension needed to be submitted to avoid sunset problems.

RECENT PERMITS

· Bldg #8 
2201 Raven Road 
Transaction #29319


Dated 10/1/03 Completed

· Bldg #9
2211 Raven Road
Transaction #37757


Dated 8/6/04 Under Construction

· Bldg#14
2210 Raven Road
Transaction #34602


Dated 6/1/04 Under Construction

City Manager Allen indicated Mr. Hunt had inquired about this and he checked with Planning Director Chapman who feels that the plan has sunset and a new site plan would need to be presented.

Attorney Lacey Reeves, P. O. Box 1070, representing Breezewood pointed out the official notice was issued by the City in 1998.  It was approved as a subdivision and they were required to meet the three year sunset provisions and those requirements were met.  The plan was fully recorded within five years and it is felt that the plan was approved as a subdivision and should be treated as a subdivision.  After brief discussion it was agreed to refer the issue to the City Attorney to work with staff to determine the official status.

TRAFFIC – SAFETY HAZARD – MILLBROOK HIGH SCHOOL – COMMENTS RECEIVED

Jaxon Bowan, 221 Carpathian Way, a sophomore at Millbrook High School, stated he was at the meeting to talk about a very dangerous situation that has occurred as a result of the decision to close the rear entrance to Millbrook High School.  He stated he contacted Donna Jackson of the Public Utilities Department about his concern and pointed out he had prepared a DVD earlier to day showing the traffic problems on Spring Forest Road at the entrance to the School.  He explained he became concerned about this when one morning his mother gave him a ride to school and had to drop him off across the street and as he was waiting to cross Spring Forest, two cars collided directly in front of him.  He stated he had checked and could find no accident record on Spring Forest prior to the rear entrance being closed.  He stated he was at the meeting to ask the Council to order the reopening of the back entrance.

City Manager Allen pointed out the back entrance is temporarily closed until about March 1.  This relates to the installation of water and sewer to serve the Johnsdale Road area.  It was pointed out Johnsdale Road is a small single-family area and it is difficult to maintain safe working conditions of the City staff and contractor’s staff performing heavy construction while still providing the residents in the subdivision access to their property for normal use and emergency conditions.  It was felt it was unsafe to allow students, faculty and visitors to use the street during the construction.  He pointed out after coordination with the school officials, etc., it was felt it was best to close the back entrance for a short period of time, pointing out hopefully the construction would be through and the entrance reopened by March 1.  He pointed out there are traffic problems even when that entrance is open so staff felt it was necessary to close the entrance during the construction.

Mayor Meeker questioned if there is anything that can be done to help with the situation with the City Manager pointing out the Public Utilities Department has coordinated with the Police Department and are trying to watch the area very careful.  Mayor Meeker stated if there are any other actions that need to take place for staff to please advise the Council.  Mayor Meeker expressed appreciation to Mr. Bowen for his comments.

TEXT CHANGE – PLANNED DEVELOPMENT CONDITIONAL USE OVERLAY DISTRICT – PUBLIC HEARING AUTHORIZED

Mayor Meeker pointed out his law firm in the past has done some work for Westfield Homes of Carolina’s LLC but does not think anyone is involved in this particular request.

Attorney Michael F. King, representing Westfield Homes of Carolinas, LLC, would like to propose text changes relating to Section 10-2057(d)(1)(a) and Section 10-2073(d) to effect a reduction in the minimum net lot area requirements for dwelling units and equivalent units in Planned Development Conditional Use Overlay District.  Additional information and proposed text changes were in the agenda packet.  Mr. King explained explained the proposal pointing out he has visited with staff and there seem to be general agreement to move forward with the text change with Planning Director Chapman agreeing.  After brief discussion on the timing, Ms. Taliaferro moved the item be scheduled for public hearing at the zoning hearing on January 18.  Her motion was seconded by Mr. Isley and put to a vote which passed unanimously (Hunt and Cowell absent).  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.

MATTERS SCHEDULED FOR PUBLIC HEARING

ANNEXATION – 1300 NOWELL ROAD/USSERY PROPERTY – HEARING – ORDINANCE AND RESOLUTION ADOPTED

This was a hearing to consider the petitioned annexation of property at 1300 Nowell Road/Ussery Property.  If following the hearing the Council wishes to proceed, it would be appropriate to adopt an ordinance annexing the property effective June 30, 2005 and a resolution placing the property in City Council Electoral District E.  The Mayor opened the hearing, no one asked to be heard thus the hearing was closed.  Mr. West moved adoption of the ordinance and resolution as outlined.  His motion was seconded by Ms. Taliaferro and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in the affirmative (Hunt and Cowell absent and excused)  See Ordinance 763 and Resolution 350.

SIDEWALK REPAIRS – VARIOUS LOCATIONS – HEARING – RESOLUTION DIRECTING REPAIRS ADOPTED

This was a hearing to consider the following sidewalk repairs:

LOCATION


TAX ID NUMBER

APPROXIMATE COST
333 South Dawson Street
       0054112



$3,108.00

50 North McDowell Street
       0020032



$   340.00

This work is to be assessed at 100 percent of actual cost to the adjacent property owner in accordance with Section 6-2023 of the City Code with payment due upon completion or over a ten (10) year payment option period.

The Mayor opened the hearing on each case.  No one asked to be heard thus the hearing was closed.  Mr. West moved adoption of a resolution directing the repairs as outlined.  His motion was seconded by Ms. Taliaferro and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in the affirmative (Hunt and Cowell absent and excused).  See Resolution 351.

STC-17-04 – ROWLAND ROAD – HEARING – RESOLUTION ADOPTED

This was a hearing to consider the permanent closing of portions of right-of-way known as Rowland Road.  The hearing is pursuant to petition, advertisement and notification as required by law. (STC-17-04).  The Mayor opened the hearing.  Planning Director Chapman explained the request which relates to the relocation of Rowland Drive.  A lady who indicated she was speaking on behalf of her mother asked questions about the amount of property involved and how the property will revert to adjacent property owners.  No one else asked to be heard thus the hearing was closed.  City Manager Allen pointed out there is a water main and Bellsouth lines therefore easements need to be reserved.  Mr. Crowder moved adoption of a resolution authorizing the closing as advertised with the reservation of easements.  His motion was seconded by Ms. Taliafero and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in the affirmative (Hunt and Cowell absent and excused).  See Resolution 352.

STC-18-04 – EXECUTIVE DRIVE – HEARING – RESOLUTION ADOPTED

This was a hearing to consider the permanent closing of a portion of right-of-way known as Executive Drive.  The hearing is pursuant to petition, advertisement and notification as required by law. (STC-18-04).  The Mayor opened the hearing.  Planning Director Chapman explained the location and the request.  The City Manager pointed out easements needed to be reserved for PSNC and Bellsouth.  Ms. Taliaferro moved adoption of a resolution authorizing the closing with the reservation of easements as outlined.  Her motion was seconded by Mr. West and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in the affirmative (Cowell/Hunt absent and excused).  See Resolution 353.

GREENWAY EASEMENT EXCHANGE – BRIER CREEK COUNTRY CLUB – HEARING – RESOLUTION ADOPTED

This was a hearing to consider exchanging greenway easement located in Brier Creek Country Club phases 13 and 14 between lots 632 and 633 for an existing greenway easement area located between lots 640 and 641 consisting of .08 acres for the purpose of relocating the greenway easement to extend along the exiting public sanitary sewer easement at Brier Creek parkway.

The Mayor opened the hearing no one asked to be heard thus the hearing was closed.  Mr. Isley moved adoption of a resolution authorizing the exchange as outlined.  His motion was seconded by Ms. Taliaferro and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in the affirmative (Hunt/Cowell absent and excused).  See Resolution 354.

SEWER EASEMENT SALE – TRYON ROAD – HEARING – RESOLUTION ADOPTED

This was a hearing to consider the sale of an existing 20-foot sanitary sewer easement along the northern property boundary of 4408 Tryon Road which was to serve 4412 Tryon Road.  Staff has determined that this easement is no longer needed by the City due to the sanitary sewer main serving 4412 Tryon Road being rerouted from the west through the Westfield development.  The new plans have been approved by the Public Utilities Department.  The Mayor opened the hearing no one asked to be heard, thus the hearing was closed.  Mr. Isley moved adoption of a resolution authorizing the sale as outlined.  His motion was seconded by Ms. Taliaferro and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in the affirmative (Hunt/Cowell absent and excused).  See Resolution 355.

PUBLIC NUISANCE COST CONFIRMATION – VARIOUS LOCATIONS – HEARING – RESOLUTION ADOPTED

This is a hearing to consider adoption of a resolution confirming the charges for abatement of public nuisances as the lien against the property listed below.  The Mayor opened the hearing on each location.

1232 Beverly Drive, National City Mortgage Co., #0064254, $259.00.  This was withdrawn from the agenda as charges have been paid.

	1609 Boyer Street
	Evelyn Spell
	0009699
	$247.00

	529 Bragg Street
	Bertha Willis
	0054765
	$247.00

	1129 Brighton Road
	Mabel Richardson & Annette Dunn
	0016190
	$247.00


818 Chatham Lane, Ernestine Leach, #0066708, $257.00.  Ernestine Leach, Bennett Street pointed out she owns the property at 818 Chatham Lane.  She rents the property.  She did not know anything about the problem until last week when she got a letter from the people who currently live there telling her about the certified letter.  Inspections Director Ellis pointed out the nuisance related to household, trash, debris, etc., notices were mailed by First Class mail and a certified letter then went out.  The charges include $72.00 for abating the nuisance and $175.00 abatement fees.  Ms. Leach pointed out she was surprised about the problem and wondered if there could be any consideration to waving the fee.  Mr. Crowder questioned if she checked the property to make sure it is kept up with Ms. Leach pointing out she was informed when the situation took place in the back yard.  They had maintained their front yard but had a problem with the back yard and some neighbors had complained.  Mayor Meeker moved approval of a charge of $175,000 and waiver of the remainder of the charge and asked Ms. Leach to keep a better eye on her property.  The motion was seconded by Ms. Taliaferro and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in the affirmative except Mr. Crowder who voted in the negative.  (Hunt/Cowell absent and excused).

	5804 Contour Drive
	Paul Satterwhite 

Custom Homes Inc
	0007631
	$309.00

	2008 Crawford Road
	Sylvester Adolphus & Rogerline White
	0025564
	$255.00

	2104 Crawford Road
	John S. Jones
	0079685
	$301.00

	2822 Dillmark Court
	Washington Mutual Bank FA & Lillian R. Clark
	0170220
	$247.00

	318 North Fisher Street
	Todd & Linda Sutton
	0024802
	$247.00

	2809 Frinks Street
	Edward A. Colden
	0013932
	$247.00

	2115 Gilliam Lane
	Citifinancial Mortgage Co Inc
	0073811
	$254.00

	1019 Greenwich Street
	Veterans Affairs Sec Of
	0057667
	$282.00

	805 East Hargett Street
	Michael Harrison
	0031166
	$247.00

	12 Hill Street
	James Thomas Greene
	0004364
	$254.00

	212 Idlewild Avenue
	Lorenzo Jeffries & June Jeffries Heirs
	0012977
	$247.00

	4524 Kaplan Drive
	Dewayne S. & Karen B. Taylor
	0109816
	$268.00


Mr. Taylor, property owner, pointed out this is rental property.  He received a letter about the grass needing cutting.  He called the tenant and the next time he went by the grass was cut.  The next thing he heard was on September 3, when he received a letter involving him he had failed to comply the orders.   He called the housing department and talked with Sherron Wilson and she emailed him photos showing the need for the grass to be cut but the photographs were not of his property.  She then emailed him photos taken in September and October.  He pointed out there was one single limb and some brush on the property and the grass was higher than allowed.  He pointed out the tenant no longer lives in the house and he does not know whether his tenant cut the grass or the City, all he knows is that his lawnmower is missing.  He talked about the number of days it rained in the period from receiving the notification until the grass was cut.  He pointed out there are a number of rental properties in this area and a lot of the owners feel they are getting targeted as it is rental property.  He stated the City did not have a photograph showing what initiated the complaint compared to after it was cut.  He again stated he couldn’t prove that his tenant cut the grass.

Ted Shear, 928 Ravenwood Drive, stated he had nothing to do with the complaint but pointed out he lives in this general facility and all of neighbors were able to keep their property in good condition even though it was a heavy rain period.  Inspections Director Ellis stated he could not address the issue of the wrong photographs and explained the information on the dates of notification, deadline, abatement date, and the fees.  No one else asked to be heard on that item.  Mr. Crowder moved upholding the fees in the amount of $268.  His motion was seconded by Mayor Meeker and put to a vote which passed with all members voting in the affirmative except Mr. Isley who voted in the negative (Crowell/Hunt absent and excused).

	4528 Kaplan Drive
	David & June King
	0109819
	$277.00

	3908 Lexington Drive
	T.E. Jernigan, Jr.
	0035515
	$298.00

	2806 Marion Road
	Norman K. & Evelyn B. Stanley
	0081554
	$306.00

	506 Montague Lane
	Sheron Hopkins
	0029528
	$256.00

	1611 Montrose Street
	Washington Mutual Bank FA
	0027999
	$254.00

	8718 Neuse Town Drive
	Linwood Dunn
	0291642
	$247.00

	732 Oak Road
	Walter B. Turner Jr.
	0028614
	$256.00

	234 Pecan Road
	James Kenneth & Kathy House Dew
	0030625
	$237.00

	1301 South Person Street
	C/O William J. Mitchiner

Albert S. Mitchiner, heirs
	0047912
	$297.00

	708 Rock Quarry Road
	C/O Frances W. Carter

John W. Winters, Trustee
	0078891
	$252.00

	501 Rose Lane
	Kenneth R. Jarman
	0035123
	$331.00-withdrawn

	7012 Sandringham Drive
	Jean L. Gillespie
	0127313
	$237.00

	7632 Summerglen Drive
	Hanna Mk LLP
	0096593
	$365.00

	3232 Ward Road
	OCWEN Federal Bank FSB
	0056813
	$254.00


No one asked to be heard on any other items.  The Mayor closed the hearing on the other items.  Mr. Crowder moved adoption of a resolution confirming charges as outlined.  His motion was seconded by Mr. West and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in the affirmative (Cowell/Hunt absent and excused).  See Resolution 356.

BUDGET HEARING – PROPOSED 2005-6 – HELD – COMMENTS RECEIVED; READABLE SIGNS PROGRESS REPORT – REFERRED TO PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE

This was a hearing to receive public input on the proposed budget for 2005-2006.  The Mayor opened the hearing.

The Mayor opened the hearing.  
Helen Tart, 611 Monroe Drive, past Chair of the Raleigh Transit Authority, pointed out she has been concerned every since the Fall of 2002 when it was determined that 80% of the CAT buses were on time which means 20% are late.  Almost all riders transfer at least once, some as many as four times; therefore when you have a late bus it causes problems.  She pointed out there has been a solution since June 2003 when the five-year transit plan came about.  The Council approved the plan but it takes a lot of funding which has not been supplied.  The consultant said there were equipment problems but the main problem is the design of the system is flawed.  She urged the Council whether it decides to merge the bus system or not to fund the five-year plan and fund the additional staff that it will take.  She stated this is an issue that has been waiting for years and she hopes the Council can step up to the plate.

Bruce Mamol, 904 Cedar Downs Drive, pointed out Schedule B Privilege License Schedule indicates fortune tellers have to pay a $200 per year tax.  He stated what is glaringly exempted from the license tax is residential rental operators.  They get off of the hook and he does not feel it is fair that residential rental people do not have to pay their freight.  He pointed out as we have seen a number of issues relating to problems with rental property and a lot of work is dedicated to resolving those.  He pointed out people who rent residential property are in business.

Jamie Ramsey, Van Dyke Avenue presented the following prepared statement.

Thank you very much for the opportunity to comment on the budget tonight.  

I would like to discuss the City’s Facility Fee Program for parks, which was developed in 1987, almost 20 years ago now.  This program allows the City to collect a park and open space facility fee on each new single family or multi-family dwelling unit developed in the City of Raleigh – and the City is then able to use the fees collected for land acquisition and park improvements that will serve those new housing units.  

This program has been helpful in funding parks and recreation facilities that are needed as a result of growth and new development -- but it hasn’t been as helpful as it could or should be.  The reason it hasn’t been fully successful is that the program hasn’t been reviewed or updated in almost 20 years.

I understand and appreciate that Council is in the process of contracting with a consultant to review all City fees, but the full implications of this consultant study may not be available this fiscal year, in time for the adoption of the budget.  We have a $47.2 million parks bond that voters overwhelmingly approved over a year ago, as well as countless other park projects and maintenance issues that need addressing.  

I am glad that the Park Facility Fee Program will be studied in a comprehensive way with other City fees.  That should be done.  

But I would like to request that Council take some interim action to adjust this program based on inflation or some other index. This interim adjustment could be in effect just until the Council acts on the expected consultant report.  

We annually review and revise other fees and charges in the Parks system…why haven’t we done the same for the Facility Fee Program?   This past May, City Council adopted the new Comprehensive Plan for Parks, Recreation and Greenways.  This plan recommended that “over the next five years (the Facility Fee Program) should be adjusted annually based on the inflation rates during the preceding year.”  This is a very moderate step and will help address an area that has been neglected for too long.  

As a reminder, the Comprehensive Plan also concluded that right now our City needs to provide 19 new neighborhood parks in order to serve our residents adequately – and that number is climbing yearly as we continue to grow.  Adjusting the Facility Fee Program sooner, instead of later, will help us meet that need.

Updating the Facility Fee Program is a great way to fairly raise funds to pay for new parks.  This is a simple, responsible and successful way that we’ve already been doing for years.  Allowing this City fee program to go for almost 20 years without adjustment has been unwise and it’s put us behind.  If you’re not willing to levy a tax that will specifically be used for parks, what’s known as a dedicated revenue source, this is the best option for helping pay for the parks we need.

As soon as possible, please act on the Facility Fee Program recommendation in the Comprehensive Plan.   Don’t wait a year for the consultants report – we know this program is way out of date and we know we are falling further and further behind in providing parks for our residents.  Please also ask staff and the Parks Board to include this program in their annual review of park fees and charges. 

Before I finish, I would very briefly like to refer back to the great need for neighborhood parks that I mentioned before.  The Comprehensive Plan made it clear that except for very unusual circumstances, we don’t need any more community or metropolitan parks for now – we have enough park acreage in those categories.  

But we do need to actively focus on the severe deficit of neighborhood parks in our City.  The benefits of having walkable green spaces for neighborhood residents are enormous – from a social, public health, environmental and economic perspective.

I hope that you will allocate or earmark a high percentage of land acquisition funds in the budget specifically for neighborhood parks.

So my comments boil down to 3 things:

Update the Facility Fee Program temporarily so we don’t lose another year and revenues that ought to be coming in for parks.    

Annually revise the program so we don’t find ourselves in this position ten years from now.  

And earmark land acquisition funds to focus our efforts on meeting our goals for neighborhood parks.  

Thank you very much!

Mary Freeman, Tammy Lynn Center, asked that the Council continue funding of the Human Services program at its current level or at an increased level.  She stated the Tammy Lynn Center appreciates the opportunity to partner with the City of Raleigh in the Early Childhood Intervention services.  She briefly explained their work.  In response to questioning, she pointed out the Tammy Lynn Center currently receives $58,000.  Gary Carr, Chief Financial Officer of the Tammy Lynn Center, presented information on the program, their budget, grant funding from various sources, the fact that they provide service to 435 individuals and families, the center is unique in North Carolina, Early Childhood Intervention services receives funding from the City and in FY03-04 107 Raleigh children were served and 2,574 hours of development therapy and family support services were provided.  Approximately 48% of the ECIS families served by the City of Raleigh funding are below the Federal poverty level.  He pointed out they moved their major fund raising – A Toast to the Triangle to the Civic Center some 5 years ago and continue to be an active supporter of the downtown revitalization goals.

Sheryl Wharey, 4400 Ryegate Road, presented the following prepared statement:

We want to thank you for the $300,000 study of Northshore and Brentwood Today Lakes during 2004-2005.

We are requesting that this Council approve the acceleration of these lake projects and fund them in 2005-2006.

We believe this is imperative for several reasons:

1) The dams and spillways of both lakes are in danger of imminent failure.

2) Two downstream projects, the Huntleigh Drive culvert (a $1.7 million project) and Beamon Lake (a $2.5 million project that is nearing completion) would be damaged and more funds would be needed for their repair.

3) Completion of the projects would alleviate upstream and downstream flooding:

*        New Hope Church Road currently floods during heavy rains

when Northshore Lake breaches the dam and could sustain substantial damage in a major storm if the spillway fails.

*        Structural flooding has already resulted from heavy rain

events.

4) Completion of the projects would allow detention of a larger quantity of stormwater runoff.

5) Completion of these projects would help the City to meet new water quality guidelines.

Perhaps, the best reason is that you would be rid of us!  We would stop coming down here every six months to remind you that there are big problems with these two lakes (which would save us all a lot of time and reduce gasoline consumption).

Otherwise, we'll be back at every budget meeting and we'll keep writing letters asking for funding until we have it.  Wouldn't it just be easier to go ahead and accelerate the projects and fund them THIS year?

Approximately 15 to 20 people stood in support of Ms. Wharely’s remarks.  City Manager Allen pointed out the Council has authorized the study for the lake and we are doing the design which has to be permitted by 3 different state agencies.  It will probably be into the spring or summer before it is complete.  The Council will need to look at this program in connection with all of the other stormwater issues.  Ms. Taliaferro pointed out the City is trying to consult with the various divisions at the State to make sure what the City is proposing will be approved.

Mary Cates, 1807 Manuel Drive, presented the following prepared statement:
I want to talk about a safety issue, especially for visitors, people unfamiliar with Raleigh streets, older adults, and others without 20/20 vision.  I have 20/20 vision with glasses, and I have a problem.  Many of our street signs are too small to be seen at a necessary distance.  You may have experienced it yourself.  I remember one year, even the young people, attending the Council youth session, listed this as an issue that should be addressed – so it concerns many young people as well, especially they said on dark, rainy, nights – the worse time for traffic accidents.  Consider what it’s like in snow and ice storms.

Some of us have been talking about this for years.  The problem is an old one.  I spoke of it often when I was on council, but the previous city manager did not seen to see this as a problem.  I hope this council and Russell Allen will.  But as you well know, unless you put some money in the budget to fix this problem, it won’t get done.  I urge you to start a pilot program now –using overhead signs (on existing overhead wires or cantilever poles) and using large signs on “warning or signals ahead” poles.  I understand the cantilever poles are better, more easily seen and do not blow in the wind).  The signal ahead poles are used in many cities at 200, 300 or 400 feet before the signalized intersection.  I have pictures to show how these are used in Cary.  You will notice that Cary uses the signal ahead signs on the same poles warning of traffic signals.  And, of course, on any four-lane road with higher speed limits the signs need to be made larger.  Greensboro’s neighborhood street signs are larger than Raleigh.

Many cities have far better signage than Raleigh.  Greensboro is very friendly to the motoring public.  Cary gets high praise for their signage.  In Raleigh, a friend told me recently of nearly getting rear-ended because she had to slow down to read a street sign.  She did experience horn blowing.  And just this week, a friend told me of going to a unfamiliar town with map on front seat of car, expecting to have to stop and look at the map several times to get where she wanted to go.  Imagine finding such good signage, she didn’t have to look at map.  Imagine what a good first impression this made on her of that town.

I believe Carl Dawson is familiar with what I am talking about.  This matter was in public works committee years ago.  Perhaps something is being done, but not enough, fast enough.  Please allocate funds to get the job done quickly.  This is a safety issue – for visitors, older adults, people with less than 20/20 vision, and yes, even some younger citizens.  Safety is a health and economic issue, as you well know.

Francis Whitley is with me tonight on support of this request.

Brief discussion took place on the history of this item and how long Ms. Cates has been working on the issue.  It was pointed out she refers to them as readable signs and the former City Manager referred to them as oversized signs.  Mr. Crowder pointed out a prior City Council put money in for streetscape improvements on Western Boulevard and he feels that would be a great corridor to be used as a pilot program.  City Manager Allen pointed out he did not know off the top of his head how many dollars were put in the budget for readable signs but the City is installing them pointing out it is a very important safety feature.  Brief discussion took place with Mayor Meeker suggesting that the City Manager provide a report on where we are on this year’s budget that is, how many dollars were allocated and how many signs have been installed.  Ms. Cates stated she would like to have that report and reported out she could suggest a number of intersections and referred particularly to the Millbrook/North Hills Drive intersection.  Ms. Taliaferro pointed out she can see the need for the readable signs and pointed out it is not an age sensitive issue explaining she is in the process of helping her teenager learn to drive and she does understand the safety issue.  Ms. Taliaferro suggested that the issue be referred to the Public Works Committee to receive the report from administration.  Without objection the item was so referred.

Mary Belle Pate, Southwest CAC presented the following wish list.

· Additional curbside leaf collection – pointing out once before Christmas is not enough and it should be posted in a very visible place on the website when that collection is going to take place.

· Additional items recycled – she pointed out the City of Raleigh could partner with other municipalities to find a use for recycled materials.

· Additional street lighting on Lineberry and particularly at Ramsgate and Joanne Drive.

· Amenities along Lake Wheeler Road such as a sidewalk, multi-purpose path, etc.  She pointed  out the people between Trailwood and Lake Wheeler have no park so they use Carolina Pines which is the closest park and it is difficult to get and across Lake Wheeler Road.

· More funding for the CAC for help with promotion.  There is not enough promotion of the CAC’s to get the involvement level that is needed.

· Funding for community watch organizations which are registered.

· Delay in the Peach Road Park Phase II.  She stated too many things need to be cleaned up before we implement additional activities.

· Penmar/Summit/Fayetteville Road improvements and a traffic sign at Saunders/Penmar.

· Create a tutorial program that would be available to CAC’s so that people could learn how to use the new city website.

Octavia Rainey, Northwest CAC pointed out they would like to see funding for a consultant for the New Bern/Edenton Task Force.  She pointed out this is a forgotten gateway into the City and explained with the opening of Fayetteville Street Mall she sees it as becoming more and more important.  She indicated last year they talked about the 1500-1200 blocks of East Jones Street being paved.  She explained a lot of streets in their area need paving.  She pointed out there were a number of calls in her neighborhood about trimming limbs off of the power lines and we need to revisit that area.  Ms. Rainey talked about Tarboro Road cemetery and getting it declared historic.  That cemetery has been forgotten and no one even knows who is buried there.  She stated she is also concerned that the other city cemeteries Mt. Hope and City Cemetery have not been declared historic.  She talked about the Booker/Hill Street Cemetery pointing out it seems to be unknown; no one knows who owns it or who is buried there.  She talked about needs for the East Lane Street mini park and pointed out their area completed a Hispanic survey and one of the top things was that there is no place for their kids to play.  The appearance in East Lane Street mini-park is awful.  She pointed out the City of Raleigh acquired the adjacent store and pointed out it would be a good place for a service center for the Idlewild Community.  She asked about the possibility of having attorneys for the neighborhoods that is funding attorneys to work with the CAC.

Ted Shear, 928 Ravenwood Drive presented the following prepared statement:

First, I would be remiss if I didn’t remind you that today y’all committed the City to finding adequate funding to support the new tree conservation ordinance.  On the whole, I believe ya’ll have a good ordinance, thank you for implementing it.

I hesitated coming here tonight, as I always find the budget daunting and challenging to read, particularly now as the City website in such disarray that it is no longer possible to find budget information.  However, I have already communicated my thoughts about the website to Mr. Allen and Councilor Crowder, so I won’t go on about those now.  I do not know if the new site is salvageable, I doubt it, and you may need to consider a budget allocation to undo what has been done there or redo it so that it is useful.  This is not a trivial task, and a good website in fundamental to city contact with citizens.  Please invest in it.

I have concerns about the Community Services Department’s primary focus on citizen involvement and volunteer services.  For example, the City website describes the World Changers Program as “a partnership between the City of Raleigh and the North American Mission Board.  Adult and youth volunteers are provided by World Changers from all over the country.”  World Changers is a ministry of the Baptist State Convention of North Carolina.  They do good work by fixing up homes of those in need, God bless them for that.  And the City of Raleigh gives the group tens of thousands of dollars to do it.  But World Changers makes clear in their promotional material that this work is secondary to its primary goal of evangelizing.  Indeed, people of my faith are not eligible to join World Changers in its good works.  The following is from the Frequently Asked Questions section on the group’s website:

Q:  Can I use a World Changers project as an outreach tool to involve unchurched youth or adults in my ministry?

A:  No.  The participants you bring to a World Changers project must be Christians who are active in your church’s ministry.  Our approach involves helping participants grow in their faith. . . ., and share their faith authentically.

So, those citizens who pray in synagogues and mosques are not welcome, apparently because they are not likely to be effective at communicating the evangelical message.  It’s not clear to me if those Christians who pray in non-Baptist churches are even welcome.

I don’t think I can recall a Council that has collectively cited the US Constitution more times than this one.  Using taxpayer dollars to overtly promote a particular religion over others is not constitutional.

The Community Services page on the City website says “Our values are Service without excuse, with integrity and inclusion of all citizens.”

This is simply not true.

I am not anti-faith in any way.  Though I am not a Christian, this morning I was directed to raise my right hand, place my left on a copy of the New Testament, and swear to tell nothing but the truth.  The exercise wasn’t necessary, as swearing or no swearing I would only have told the truth.  Rather, I recognized the act not as promoting a particular religion and an affront to my own, but as a demonstration of my commitment to the truth.  This afternoon, I bowed my head in this chamber as Mr. Puccini led the Council in an opening benediction in Christ’s name.  I was not the least bit offended; rather I appreciated the opportunity to take a moment to ponder with my fellow citizens the plight of those on the other side of the world suffering from overwhelming disaster.

But I do not want my tax money being used to proselytize a particular religion.  That is not faith-based charity.

You have a proposal before you to create a new youth RCAC.  Though I have not analyzed it fully, I don’t think it has much merit, and one concern is that it appears to link Youth RCAC work with this proselytizing effort.  This is not an appropriate use of taxpayer money.  The proposal calls for partially funding the Youth RCAC with $10,000 from the Fair Housing Hearing Board budget.  So the Board has more money than it can spend, and it should be the Council’s task to decide how to direct the excess, not the Board’s.  I ask that you forgo spending on a Youth RCAC.  Many of the CAC’s are not truly functional.  Let’s get those right first, so we can then lead our youth by example.  Youth are certainly welcomed at the West CAC.  And you can take additional savings by funding the Fair Housing Hearing Board and every other Board and Commission with only what they need to do their work.

I gather you give about a half-million dollars or more a year to local charities.  That is fantastic, and I ask that as you consider the 2005-2006 budget, you consider giving more.  But it I think it is time for that giving to be examined, to be certain that it is being used appropriately.

Thank you for this opportunity to speak about the budget.

Dr. Benson Kirkman, 3712 Eakley Court spoke in support of Mary Cates’ remarks about readable signs.  He asked that the Council consider the prospect/moring connector pointing out if that street were built it would connect an area that has some good possible economic development potential.  It is not a big project but it always gets put behind the back burner.  He called on the Council to fund the Hillsborough Street plan, pointing out he would love to see something happen there.  We need to move forward with implementing that plan.  We also need to look at the New Bern Avenue Corridor.  Dr. Kirkman talked about pay raises for City employees and called on the Council to start at the bottom or the lowest paid employee and provide raises.  He pointed out we have city employees who cannot afford to live in the City of Raleigh.  They have to work two or three jobs.  He called on the Council to fund another staff position in the City Council office pointing out many times Council members have to answer the telephone as everyone else is busy or have had to run an errand or whatever.  He stated the three employees in the Council office are superb but he feels the Council needs more support.  He supported the comments that had been made about moving forward with the parks bond program and talked about the needs at Lake Johnson and Walnut Creek wetlands, etc.  He talked about the Dorothea Dix Master Plan pointing out the people present at the meeting earlier in the day were a little disappointed that the resolution from the Friends of Dorothea Dix moved forward without comment.  He pointed out that will have a budget impact.  He asked the Council to take a hard look at City’s salaries and City workers specifically, inspections, housing, environmental and zoning.  We need to hire and keep qualified people.  He pointed out crime prevention and fire prevention are two very important areas that we need to look at the funding for. These groups do as much as anyone in making for a better quality in life and called on the Council to look at the pay scale and opportunities for incentives.  He stated he has a lot of items on his list and he will email them to Council members.  He wished the Council good luck in balancing the budget pointing out he does not feel they can expect a lot of support from the State.

Jessica Puckett, 648 Adams Road, talked about her work on the Pullen Park Master Plan Committee.  She stated Pullen Park is a treasure and told about a recent visit to the park when she saw trash in the lake, beer bottles, broken concrete and other maintenance issues.  She told of the long hard work on the master plan committee pointing out the City spent taxpayers money to create the plan and they have only funded $5 million of the almost $17 million project.  She stated funding at that rate will take a long time to fully implement the plan.  Only two projects have been completed in Phase I.  She called on the Council to move that plan forward pointing out if we are going to do plans and put them on the self, it does no good and called on the Council to put as much money as possible into Pullen Park.

No one else asked to be heard thus the hearing was closed and the comments referred to administration.

Adjournment:  There being no further business, Mayor Meeker announced the meeting adjourned at 8:55 p.m.

Gail G. Smith

City Clerk
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